
15 November 2017

Cabinet

Wednesday 15 November 2017 at 10.00 am

Cabinet Suite - Shire Hall, Gloucester

AGENDA

Item Discussion Portfolio

1 Apologies 

To note any apologies for absence.

Leader of Council 

2 Minutes (Pages 1 - 18)

To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 27 September 2017 
(minutes attached).

Leader of Council 

3 Declarations of Interest 

Cabinet members are invited to declare any pecuniary or personal 
interests relating to specific matters on the agenda.

Please see note (a) at the end of the agenda

Leader of Council 

4 Questions at Cabinet Meetings 

Up to 30 minutes is allowed for this item.

Written questions 

To answer any written questions from a County Councillor, (or any 
person living or working in the county, or is affected by the work of the 
County Council), about any matter which relates to any item on the 
agenda for this meeting. 

The closing date for the receipt of written questions is 4.00 pm on 
Thursday 9 November 2017. 

Oral questions

To answer any oral questions from members of the public. 

Leader of Council 



15 November 2017

An oral question may be asked by a member of the public about any 
item on the agenda for this meeting, provided notice of the question is 
given by the questioner to the Chief Executive’s representative at least 
30 minutes prior to the start of the meeting. 

Depending on the nature of the question, it may not be possible to 
provide a comprehensive answer at the meeting, in which case a written 
answer will be provided as soon as reasonably possible after the 
meeting. 

Questions received and proposed responses do not accompany this 
agenda but will be circulated prior to the meeting.

Key Decisions

5 Tender and Award of Recyclate Services under the Dynamic 
Purchasing System (DPS) for Household Recycling (Pages 19 - 28)

To seek to: 

a) Extend all current recyclate contracts, (with the exception of 
wood), for a further period of two months and, to

b) Tender and award new recyclate contracts for a term of three 
years, (three years and three months for the wood contract), with 
the option to extend for up to a further year in each case.  

Fire, Planning and 
Infrastructure 

6 Stonehouse A419 Improvement Scheme - Contract Procurement 
and Ancillary Orders (Pages 29 - 40)

To seek approval to authorise the Commissioning Director: Communities 
and Infrastructure to conduct a competitive tender process for the award 
of the contract for the A419 Highway Improvement Scheme. 

In addition, Cabinet to authorise the use of funds from the existing 
Highways Budget to fund the design works for the scheme, (to be 
recovered from the Growth Deal Fund Grant). 

Fire, Planning and 
Infrastructure 

7 Domiciliary Care - Urban Dynamic Purchasing System (DPS) (Pages 
41 - 46)

To approve the establishment of a Dynamic Purchasing System (DPS) 
for the provision of care for vulnerable and older people in the urban 
zones of Cheltenham and Gloucester. 

Vulnerable Adults 
and Commissioning

Adult Social Care 

8 Financial Monitoring Report 2017/18 (Pages 47 - 68)

To provide an update on the year-end forecast for the 2017/18 County 
Council’s Revenue and Capital Budgets.  

Finance and 
Change 



15 November 2017

Cabinet
Cllr Mark Hawthorne MBE, Cllr Richard Boyles, Cllr Tim Harman, Cllr Nigel Moor, 
Cllr Vernon Smith, Cllr Lynden Stowe, Cllr Ray Theodoulou, Cllr Kathy Williams and 
Cllr Roger Wilson

NOTES
1. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST – Members requiring advice or clarification about whether to 

make a declaration of interest are invited to contact the Monitoring Officer (Jane Burns 01452 
328472 /fax: 425149 e-mail: jane.burns@gloucestershire.gov.uk) prior to the start of the meeting.

2. INSPECTION OF PAPERS AND GENERAL QUERIES - If you wish to inspect minutes or reports 
relating to any item on this agenda or have any other general queries about the meeting, please 
contact: Jo Moore, Senior Democratic Services Adviser :01452 324196/fax: 425240/e-mail: 
jo.moore@gloucestershire.gov.uk

3. DEFINITION OF A KEY DECISION - A ‘Key Decision’ is one that is, if implemented, is likely to
 Result in significant additional expenditure or savings to the value of £500,000 or more, or
 Be significant in terms of its effect on communities in two or more electoral divisions.

4.

5. 

GENERAL ARRANGEMENTS - Members are required to sign the attendance list.

PHOTOGRAPHY, FILMING AND AUDIO RECORDING OF COUNCIL MEETINGS is permitted 
subject to the Local Government Access to Information provisions. Please contact Democratic 
Services (01452 324202) to make the necessary arrangements ahead of the meeting. If you are 
a member of the public and do not wish to be photographed or filmed please inform the 
Democratic Services Officer on duty at the meeting.  

EVACUATION PROCEDURE - in the event of the fire alarms sounding during the meeting please 
leave as directed in a calm and orderly manner and go to the assembly point located outside the 
main entrance to Shire Hall in Westgate Street.  Please remain there and await further 
instructions.

mailto:jane.burns@gloucestershire.gov.uk
mailto:jo.moore@gloucestershire.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



MINUTES of meeting of the Cabinet

Held on WEDNESDAY 27 SEPTEMBER 2017

PETER BUNGARD
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a correct record at the next meeting

- 1 -

 CABINET MINUTES 

27 September 2017

Gloucestershire
County
Council

           Present: 

           Cllr Mark Hawthorne MBE – Leader of Council
           Cllr Ray Theodoulou – Finance and Change 
           Cllr Richard Boyles – Children and Young People 
           Cllr Tim Harman – Public Health and Communities 
           Cllr Nigel Moor – Fire, Planning and Infrastructure
           Cllr Vernon Smith – Highways and Flood 
           Cllr Lynden Stowe – Economy, Skills and Growth 
           Cllr Roger Wilson – Vulnerable Adults and Commissioning 

1. Apologies 

Apologies were received from Cllr Kathy Williams, Cabinet Member: Adult Social 
Care. 

2. Minutes of the Meeting 

The minutes of the meeting held on 18 September 2017 were confirmed and signed 
as a true record of the meeting. 

3. Declarations of Interest 

No declarations of interest were made at the meeting.

4. Questions at Cabinet Meetings 

Public Questions

No public questions were submitted for consideration at this meeting. 

Member Questions

A total of 12 member questions were submitted in advance of the meeting. 

Page 2



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a correct record at the next meeting

- 2 -

Please refer to the following link to view the responses to the questions: - 

http://192.168.220.171:9071/documents/b13588/Cabinet%20Member%20Question
s%20and%20Answers%20Wednesday%2027-Sep-
2017%2010.00%20Cabinet.pdf?T=9 

If you are unable to access the document at the above link, please go to the link 
below and select the ‘Cabinet Questions and Answers’ PDF document at the top of 
the web page: -  

http://192.168.220.171:9071/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=117&MId=8410&Ver=4 

The following supplementary questions were asked at the meeting.

Question 1: Cllr Iain Dobie 

Agenda Item 5: Financial Monitoring Report 2017/18 (Pages 1 to 14 of the 
agenda pack) 

Cllr Dobie enquired, in cash terms, how much the council’s mental health budget 
had reduced by, and why there had been no re-investment in improvements to 
mental health services. 

Response by: Cllr Roger Wilson: Cabinet Member for Vulnerable Adults and 
Commissioning 

Cllr Wilson clarified that the Medium Term Financial Strategy was agreed by the 
Council in February 2017, setting out proposed savings for 2017/18. Cllr Wilson 
suggested Cllr Dobie meet with officers to gain a better understanding of how the 
budget was being managed. 

Question 2: Cllr Iain Dobie 

Agenda Item 5: Financial Monitoring Report 2017/18 (Pages 1 to 14 of the 
agenda pack) 

Cllr Dobie said he was pleased with the response to the question, and the decision 
to transfer part of the underspend in the public mental health budget to the public  
health reserve. Cllr Dobie asked if other underspends would be ring-fenced for 
mental health? 

Response by: Cllr Tim Harman: Cabinet Member for Public Health and 
Communities

Cllr Harman outlined details of how the underspend was being reinvested, including 
providing a mentoring programme, dedicated support for suicide prevention training 
and bereavement support. Cllr Harman agreed to provide more details after the 
meeting, and said, “it was not the council’s intention to make savings, but rather, to 
spend the council’s money more effectively”. 

Page 3

http://192.168.220.171:9071/documents/b13588/Cabinet%20Member%20Questions%20and%20Answers%20Wednesday%2027-Sep-2017%2010.00%20Cabinet.pdf?T=9
http://192.168.220.171:9071/documents/b13588/Cabinet%20Member%20Questions%20and%20Answers%20Wednesday%2027-Sep-2017%2010.00%20Cabinet.pdf?T=9
http://192.168.220.171:9071/documents/b13588/Cabinet%20Member%20Questions%20and%20Answers%20Wednesday%2027-Sep-2017%2010.00%20Cabinet.pdf?T=9
http://192.168.220.171:9071/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=117&MId=8410&Ver=4


Minutes subject to their acceptance as a correct record at the next meeting

- 3 -

Question 3: Cllr Iain Dobie 

Agenda Item 10: Direct Award Contract for Electronic Call Monitoring to 
Disability Community Care and Support Providers (Pages 103 to 110 of the 
agenda pack) 

Cllr Dobie enquired how checks on providers would be reported back to members 
and at which scrutiny committee? He asked what performance indicators would be 
in the public domain and in published contract reports to ensure carers allowed 
appropriate time between visits? 

Response by: Cllr Roger Wilson: Cabinet Member for Vulnerable Adults and 
Commissioning 

Cllr Wilson endorsed the importance of allowing adequate time between visits. He 
confirmed this would be monitored by checking rosters set by individual providers. 
In addition, Electronic Call Monitoring System contracts included clauses to ensure 
providers charged appropriately. Cllr Wilson advised members he would be 
checking on how the information was disseminated. 

Question 4: Cllr Jeremy Hilton 

Agenda Item 12: Property Acquisition Policy (Pages 131 to 152 of the agenda 
pack) 

Cllr Hilton asked what land purchases the council might be considering to support 
business need?

Response by: Cllr Ray Theodoulou: Cabinet Member for Finance and Change 

Cllr Theodoulou clarified that, until recently, the council had been in a mode of 
disposal, which had provided a good boost to the council’s income. The council was 
now in a different position, particularly in light of the recent Ofsted Inspection of 
Children’s Services. Responding to the requirement to provide accommodation for 
the vulnerable children of Gloucestershire, the council now had the stimulus from 
which to develop a policy to acquire land for this purpose. 

Question 5: Cllr Jeremy Hilton 

Agenda Item 12: Property Acquisition Policy (Pages 131 to 152 of the agenda 
pack) 

Cllr Hilton supported the decision not to purchase land and buildings for investment 
purposes outside of Gloucestershire, and asked whether this was cabinet policy or 
the cabinet member’s personal policy?

Response by: Cllr Ray Theodoulou: Cabinet Member for Finance and Change 

Cllr Theodoulou confirmed, unless for a specific purpose, there were no plans to 
seek large scale acquisitions to benefit from huge returns. It was not cabinet policy. 

Page 4



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a correct record at the next meeting

- 4 -

Question 6: Cllr Jeremy Hilton 

Agenda Item 12: Property Acquisition Policy (Pages 131 to 152 of the agenda 
pack) 

Cllr Hilton asked if there were plans to reduce the rural estate even further ?

Response by: Cllr Ray Theodoulou: Cabinet Member for Finance and Change 

Cllr Theodoulou confirmed that the policy was to reduce the rural estate and that 
this had been the council’s intention for some time. The council would be working 
with tenants to reduce the rural estate to 6,500 acres. 

Question 7: Cllr Jeremy Hilton 

Agenda Item 13: Interim Residual Waste Disposal Arrangements (Pages 153 to 
164 of the agenda pack) 

Cllr Hilton questioned some of the statistics referred to in the response to his 
question. Noting 85% of the value of the waste contract related to landfill tax, Cllr 
Hilton sought clarification on the response he had been given, including projected 
savings over 25 years from the processing of household residual waste at the 
Javelin Park Incinerator.  

Cllr Hilton also sought clarification on the costs to the council from extending the 
waste contract.  

Response by: Cllr Nigel Moor: Cabinet Member for Fire, Planning and 
Infrastructure 

Cllr Moor noted that Cllr Hilton’s original question related to the extension of the 
waste contract but agreed to provide a detailed answer to the supplementary 
question after the meeting.  

Question 8: Cllr Jeremy Hilton 

Agenda Item 13: Interim Residual Waste Disposal Arrangements (Pages 153 to 
164 of the agenda pack) 

Cllr Hilton asked what tonnage of waste would be processed and what savings 
might be anticipated during the first year of processing household residual waste at 
the Javelin Park Incinerator.   

Response by: Cllr Ray Theodoulou: Cabinet Member for Finance and Change 

Cllr Theodoulou agreed to provide Cllr Hilton with a detailed answer after the 
meeting.  

Page 5



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a correct record at the next meeting

- 5 -

Question 9: Cllr Jeremy Hilton 

Agenda Item 13: Interim Residual Waste Disposal Arrangements (Pages 153 to 
164 of the agenda pack) 

Expressing concerns about the issue of ‘queues’ and ‘congestion’ at the Hempsted 
Landfill Site, Cllr Hilton enquired whether it was time to consider proposals for a 
new landfill facility to service Gloucester.   

Response by: Cllr Nigel Moor: Cabinet Member for Fire, Planning and 
Infrastructure 

Cllr Moor confirmed that the date for the anticipated closure of the Hempsted 
Landfill Site was 2020. Use of the site after this date was dependent on Cory 
investigating whether there was gas present at the site. Cllr Moor stated that, 
closure of the landfill facility provided an opportunity for reorganising the site. He 
hoped this would make a big improvement. 

Question 10: Cllr Jeremy Hilton 

Agenda Item 6: Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service (GFRS): Draft 
Integrated Risk Management Plan 2018-21 (Pages 15 to 70 of the agenda).

Referring to the need to make £18.5m savings across the Council, and with the 
2018-19 budget process underway, Cllr Hilton enquired whether further cuts would 
be made to the Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service?  

Response by: Cllr Nigel Moor: Cabinet Member for Fire, Planning and 
Infrastructure 

Cllr Moor informed members that GFRS was a valued service and a number of 
capital bids had been put forward to support the Service. The bids had been 
considered at the Environment and Communities Scrutiny Committee meeting on 
20 September 2017. 

Question 11: Cllr Jeremy Hilton 

Agenda Item 6: Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service: Draft Integrated 
Risk Management Plan 2018-21 (Pages 15 to 70 of the agenda).

Referring to the success in recruiting female fire-fighters to the Gloucestershire Fire 
and Rescue Service, Cllr Hilton enquired whether the council would be setting a 
target to increase the number of women and people from a BME (Black Minority 
Ethnic) background over the next 5 years? 

Response by: Cllr Nigel Moor: Cabinet Member for Fire, Planning and 
Infrastructure 

Cllr Moor confirmed that one of the council’s key objectives was diversity. His view 
was that the setting of specific targets was not particularly helpful and advised that 

Page 6



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a correct record at the next meeting

- 6 -

the council would continue to look at the capability of the individuals coming forward 
and appoint on merit when recruiting new members of staff.    

Question 12: Cllr Jeremy Hilton 

Agenda Item 6: Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service: Draft Integrated 
Risk Management Plan 2018-21 (Pages 15 to 70 of the agenda).

Cllr Hilton supported the decision by the Fire and Rescue Service to use social 
media as part of the IRMP (Integrated Risk Management Plan) consultation process 
and suggested it might be helpful for everyone to look at the benefits of using social 
media during public consultations. Cllr Hilton requested a proper analysis of the use 
of social media by the council.

Response by: Cllr Nigel Moor: Cabinet Member for Fire, Planning and 
Infrastructure 

Cllr Moor supported Cllr Hilton’s comments and said he agreed it was important to 
share the good messages relating to the Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service. 
He acknowledged that the current consultation was very different to the IRMP 
consultation undertaken 3 years ago.

5. Financial Monitoring Report 2017/18 

Cllr Ray Theodoulou, Cabinet Member for Finance and Change, gave an update on 
the year-end forecast for the 2017/18 County Council’s Revenue and Capital 
Budgets. He also proposed a number of changes to the Capital Programme. 

Reporting the forecast revenue year end position as showing an overspend of 
£1.873 million, Cllr Theodoulou confirmed there were significant pressures on the 
Adult Social Care, Children’s Services and Communities and Infrastructure 
Budgets. It was hoped some of the overspends would reduce over time. 

Cllr Theodoulou invited Cllr Nigel Moor, Cabinet Member for Fire, Planning and 
Infrastructure, to comment on the current overspend of the Regulatory Services 
Budget, (accrued from a lower than forecast income from Registrar’s and Trading 
Standards). Cllr Moor reassured members that officers continued to explore 
opportunities on this position, and that he was confident of a significant 
improvement in reducing the overspend

Referring to the financial challenges impacting on Adult and Children’s Services, 
Cllr Theodoulou advised members of the potential additional costs arising from the 
recent Ofsted Inspection of Children’s Services. It was noted that some of the 
financial pressures had been offset by the positive variances in corporate budgets.  

In terms of Capital Expenditure, Cllr Theodoulou confirmed a revised capital budget 
for 2017/18 at £119.844 million, an increase of £8.288 million generated from the 
additional grant funding and contributions agreed at the cabinet meeting in July. 

Page 7



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a correct record at the next meeting

- 7 -

Having considered all of the information, including known proposals and the 
reasons for the recommendations, Cabinet noted the report and,  

RESOLVED to:  

1. Note the forecast revenue year end position as at the end of July 2017 for 
the 2017/18 financial year of a net £1.873 million overspend.

2.  Agree the following revenue contributions to capital of:

2.1 £0.066 million under spend in Property revenue budgets       
   towards the Fire capital programme

2.2 £0.053 million from the Highways Commissioning revenue  
      towards the Minor Works and Highways Locals capital    
      budgets 

3. Approve £0.300 million transfer from the Services to Families with Young 
Children reserve to the Children’s Centre revenue budget to fund revenue 
start up costs.

4. Note the forecast capital year end position for 2017/18 of £0.420 million 
slippage.

5. Approve the following changes to the Capital Programme totalling 
£1.519 million.

5.1The deletion of the £0.300 million capital project for Children’s Centres 
improvements from the Children & Families Capital Programme, no longer 
required (see recommendation 3 above).

5.2  A new £0.250 million scheme for an additional classroom at  Rissington 
Primary School, funded by a budget virement from unallocated schools 
capital basic need grant. 

5.3  The allocation of £0.964 million developer s106 contribution to the 
Shurdington Primary scheme and a budget virement of £0.764 million 
grant to the unallocated basic need grant budget, increasing the 
Shurdington budget by £0.200 million.

5.4 An increase of £0.301 million to the Mickleton Primary scheme, funded by 
developer s106 contributions.

5.5 An increase of £0.057 million to the Cotswold Academy scheme, 
funded by developer s106 contribution. 

5.6  An increase of £0.035 million to the Woodmancote Primary School 
scheme, funded by developer s106 contributions. 

Page 8



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a correct record at the next meeting

- 8 -

5.7An increase of £0.161 million to the Gloucester Road Primary 
scheme, funded by developer s106 contributions.

5.8 An increase of £0.117 million to the Bishops Cleeve Primary 
scheme, funded by developer s106 contributions.

5.9 An increase of £0.118 million in the Highways Capital budget, 
funded £0.053 million of revenue contributions from the Minor Works 
and Highways Locals budgets and £0.071 million from the C&I 
revenue reserve. The overall increase figure off sets a reduction of 
£0.006 million in contributions from other agencies.

5.10 An increase of £0.066 million in the Fire Safety capital programme,                      
        funded by a £0.066 million of revenue contributions from Property t
        towards funding of the new training towers

6. Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service: Draft Integrated Risk Management 
Plan 2018-21 

Cllr Nigel Moor, Cabinet Member for Fire, Planning and Infrastructure, commended 
the hard work invested in the Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service: Draft 
Integrated Risk Management Plan (IRMP) 2018-2021. 

Outlining the 3 core objectives on which the Fire and Rescue Services aimed to 
fulfil its statutory duties, Cllr Moor sought approval of the plan, including 
authorisation for the Chief Fire Officer to undertake consultation with members of 
the public, relevant stakeholders and partners. He confirmed the consultation would 
commence in October 2017, ending in January 2018. Acknowledging a question 
from Cllr Jeremy Hilton asked earlier in the meeting, Cllr Moor emphasised the 
value of using social media as part of the consultation. 

Cllr Moor informed members that the Fire and Rescue Service intended to focus on 
protecting the most vulnerable people in the county, including those groups 
identified as being high risk and most likely to be involved in a fire. 

Leader of the Council, Cllr Mark Hawthorne, reinforced the importance of this 
intention and commended the work being undertaken to ensure all parties were 
committed to working together for the benefit of the community. 

Having considered all of the information, including known proposals and the 
reasons for the recommendations, Cabinet noted the report and,  

RESOLVED to:  

1) Approve the content of the Draft Integrated Risk Management Plan (IRMP) 
2018, prepared on the basis of the 3 objectives set out in Paragraph 1.1 of 
the report; and

Page 9



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a correct record at the next meeting

- 9 -

2) Authorise the Chief Fire Officer to undertake a public consultation on the 
Draft Integrated Risk Management Plan (IRMP) 2018, in accordance with 
principles set out in Paragraph 1.2 of the report.

7. Investing in Support for People in Vulnerable Circumstances - Interim 
Arrangements 

Cllr Roger Wilson, Cabinet Member for Vulnerable Adults and Commissioning, 
sought approval to extend the Gloucestershire Welfare Support Scheme Contract 
for a further year, extending the expiry date of the contract to 31 March 2019. The 
Cabinet Member also sought to bring together a number of interim public health 
contracts, (agreed by Cabinet in November 2016 and February 2017), under the 
one contractual timeline. 

Having considered all of the information, including known proposals and the 
reasons for the recommendations, Cabinet noted the report and 

RESOLVED to: 

Delegate authority to the Director of Public Health, in consultation with the Cabinet 
Member Vulnerable Adults and Commissioning, to:

a. Exercise the contractual option to extend the existing Gloucestershire 
Welfare Support Scheme contract with the service provider known as 
‘Auriga Services’ for a further period of 1 year, to expire on 31st March 
2019; and

b. Direct award the seven (7) interim contracts listed in Section B of Appendix A 
to the report, for terms ranging between 4 months and 9 months, to the 6 
incumbent service providers specified therein, (one of whom is the service 
provider under two contracts), with the effect that they will all expire on 30th 
September 2018.

8. Tendering Specialist Domestic Abuse Services 

Presenting the report on behalf of Cllr Kathy Williams, Cabinet Member for Adult 
Social Care, Cllr Roger Wilson, Cabinet Member for Vulnerable Adults and 
Commissioning, sought approval for Gloucestershire County Council to act as lead 
authority on behalf of Gloucestershire’s Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence 
Commissioning Group to create a multi-supplier Framework Agreement for the 
provision of specialist domestic abuse services. 

Cllr Wilson outlined the benefits of bringing together the different providers and 
agencies for domestic abuse services under the one framework. The proposed 
contract to be divided into specialist lots covering an initial term of 5 years, with the 
option to extend for a further 2 years. It was noted that the total value of the 
contract, (estimated at £14m), was included in the council budget.    

Page 10



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a correct record at the next meeting

- 10 -

Having considered all of the information, including known proposals and the 
reasons for the recommendations, Cabinet noted the report and,  

RESOLVED to:  

Authorise the Director of Public Health to:

1. Develop and conduct an EU compliant competitive tender process with the 
Council acting as lead authority for the creation of a 5 year multi- supplier 
Framework Agreement for the delivery of specialist domestic abuse services.  
The Framework will be divided into specialist Lots and have a total estimated 
value of £14m over its term which comprises both the council spend 
(estimated at £9m) and that of the participating local partners. 

2. Upon conclusion of the competitive tender process, to appoint the preferred 
provider(s) to each Lot under the Framework Agreement that have been 
evaluated as meeting the standards set out in the evaluation criteria subject 
to any limitation on numbers that may have been provided for in the tender 
process.  

3. Upon the conclusion of the award of the Framework Agreement, to use it to 
award a single supplier call off contract for the provision of Specialist 
Services to Victims of Domestic Abuse for a term of 7 years comprising an 
initial term of 5 years with an option to extend for a further 2 years with an 
estimated total value of £7m.

4. Use the Framework Agreement to enter into such call off contracts during the 
term of the Framework Agreement as are required to meet the council’s 
assessed needs for the Framework services to achieve the objectives of the 
Gloucestershire Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence Strategy and 
Outcomes Framework. 

9. Libraries - Self Service Radio Frequency Identification Solution Tender 

Cllr Tim Harman, Cabinet Member for Public Health and Communities, sought 
approval to procure ‘radio frequency identification’ kiosks to enable the public to 
carry out self-service transactions in local libraries. Cllr Harman explained that the 
decision would allow the council to replace some of the 54 kiosks in existence 
across the county, at an estimated capital cost of £350,000.  

Having considered all of the information, including known proposals and the 
reasons for the recommendations, Cabinet noted the report and,  

RESOLVED to:  

(a) Approve the procurement of Radio Frequency Identification (RFID) self service 
kiosks and associated software for libraries.

Page 11



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a correct record at the next meeting

- 11 -

(b) Conduct of a further (mini) competition under a framework tender process 
(Eastern Shire Purchasing Organisation (ESPO) Framework 350), and the award of 
a contract for the delivery of the RFID self service solution.

10. Direct award contract for Electronic Call Monitoring to disability community 
care and support providers 

Cllr Roger Wilson, Cabinet Member for Vulnerable Adults and Commissioning, 
sought approval to undertake a direct contract award process for delivery of the 
council’s Electronic Call Monitoring (ECM) communication system. 

Cllr Wilson informed members that the contract for the current system had been in 
place for a number of years. Outlining the benefits of continuing with the contract, 
Cllr Wilson explained that that the call monitoring system was designed to monitor 
carer and service user rosters and ensure more effective invoicing.

Referring to the contract as ‘vitally important’, Cllr Wilson explained how the system 
would allow the council to hold service users and providers to account and ensure 
adequate time was allowed between appointments. 

Having considered all of the information, including known proposals and the 
reasons for the recommendations, Cabinet noted the report and,  

RESOLVED to:  

Authorise the Commissioning Director, (Adults), to: - 

Conduct a legally compliant direct award process under the Eastern Shires 
Purchasing Organisation, (“ESPO”), framework agreement, (in accordance with the 
rules of the Framework and the Public Contracts Regulations 2015), for the award 
of a 5 year, 3 month Electronic Call Monitoring contract with an estimated maximum 
spend of £480k, resulting in an expected 5 year net saving of between £2 and £3 
million across the community based care and support sector.

11. Highways Procurement Strategy 

Cllr Vernon Smith, Cabinet Member for Highways and Flood, gave a detailed 
update on the Council’s proposed Highways Services Procurement Strategy before 
seeking cabinet approval to carry out three legally compliant tender processes for 
the procurement and delivery of highway services. On conclusion of the tender 
processes, (and in consultation with the Cabinet Member), the Council to enter into 
a contract with the three preferred providers, evaluated as offering ‘best value for 
money’ for delivery of the required services.  

Cllr Smith informed the meeting that, in consultation with cabinet members and 
following discussions with a cross-party Cabinet Panel, he and officers had 
developed a robust procurement strategy for delivery of the council’s highway 
services, post April 2019, (following expiry of the current Amey contract). 

Page 12



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a correct record at the next meeting

- 12 -

Cllr Smith informed members that the proposal was to move away from a single 
provider model to a multiple provider model, with some day to day operating 
decision-making and design of works being delivered by an-house team, resulting 
in approximately 45 staff transferring into the Council. The aim of the proposed 
model would allow the authority more control over the delivery of works, without 
significantly increasing its exposure to risk. 

The proposed model to be broken down into three contracts; i) a smaller Term 
Maintenance Contract for delivery of day to day maintenance works; ii) a Structural 
Maintenance Contract, to deliver more cost effective resurfacing works, and iii) a 
Professional Services Support Contract, to provide specialist design, project 
management and transport planning services. Financial modelling suggested the 
three procurements were anticipated to result in a ‘cost neutral’ outcome.

Outlining some of the principles on which the strategy would attempt to ensure the 
contract was the ‘right contract’, Cllr Smith confirmed that the intention was to 
carefully evaluate the quality of bidders, (soft market testing has already indicated a 
number of bidders have demonstrated an interest in bidding for the contract); 
continue to engage with the cross party Cabinet Panel; develop a long term, 
positive relationship with the Term Maintenance Contractor, and develop a reliable 
performance management system to ensure the successful delivery of the contract. 
Cllr Smith said that the approach to be taken would be one of ‘evolution’ and not 
‘revolution’.

Cllr Smith referred to the positive comments that had been received from the cross-
party Cabinet Panel, (reported at Appendix B of the report). He reported that the 
panel met regularly and that he had been pleased with how the work of the group 
had progressed.

Outlining the proposed governance structure for delivering the new contracts, Cllr 
Smith explained how the council intended to manage performance, including the 
potential for poor performance. He informed members that use of the Highways 
Maintenance Efficiency Programme ‘standard’ contract documents, including new 
engineering contract, would ensure robust mechanisms were included in the 
contract, and enable any contractual and commercial issues to be resolved. 

The contracts to include a special mechanism for resolving any poor performance 
issues, (lack of service delivery), by allowing any element of a failing service to be 
substituted by the Council. 

Cllr Smith confirmed that the proposed model had been tested and challenged by 
the cross-party Cabinet Panel and through industry soft market testing. Other 
options, including re-tendering the existing contract and in-house delivery, had been 
considered and discounted. In terms of proposed timelines, it was anticipated that 
the award of the structural maintenance contract would take place in March 2018, 
with the other contracts following on after this date.  

Responding to questions, it was confirmed that the transfer of 45 staff to the council 
was included in the budget and that the Lengthsman Scheme would be written into 
the new Term Maintenance Contract. 

Page 13



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a correct record at the next meeting

- 13 -

Experience in developing policies and responding to legislation had reinforced the 
decision to allow a month between the award of the contract to mobilisation.   

Cllr Smith and the Leader of the Council thanked GCC officers for the extensive 
work and commitment invested in the project. Cllr Smith also thanked those 
involved in the recent successful completion of the Elmbridge Court Roundabout 
Scheme.

Having considered all of the information, including known proposals and the 
reasons for the recommendations, Cabinet noted the report and,  

RESOLVED to:  

Authorise the Commissioning Director, Communities and Infrastructure, to:

(1) Carry out three legally compliant competitive tender processes for the 
delivery of highway services under three separate contracts, comprising; -  

a. a seven year highway services term maintenance contract with 
options for two two-year extensions; 

b. a two year single provider contract for the delivery of structural 
maintenance works; and 

c. a six year contract for the delivery of professional services support 
with options for two two-year extensions.

(2) Upon conclusion of the said competitive tender processes, and in 
consultation with the Cabinet Member for Highways and Flood, to enter into 
a contract with each of the preferred provider(s) evaluated as offering the 
Council best value for money for delivery of the three required services.  

In the event that the preferred provider for any of the three proposed 
contracts is either, unable, or unwilling to enter into that contract with the 
Council then the Commissioning Director, Communities and Infrastructure to 
be authorised to award such contracts to the next willing highest placed 
suitably qualified provider.

12. Property Acquisition Policy 

Cllr Ray Theodoulou, Cabinet Member for Finance and Change, sought approval of 
the Council’s Property Acquisition Policy. 

Chief Executive, Pete Bungard, reported a slight amendment to Paragraph 2.3.3 of 
the draft document, inserting a directive to ‘consult with the Cabinet Member for 
Finance and Change in instances where the Property Board approved a business 
case’. 

Cllr Theodoulou outlined the requirement for the new policy, and explained that, 
until recently, the council had operated in a ‘property disposal’ mode, with very little 

Page 14



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a correct record at the next meeting

- 14 -

property acquisition. The council was currently in a different position, with some 
service areas, (notably children’s services), needing to provide accommodation for 
clients and service users. 

Until this time, the council had not held a formal policy for property acquisition. 
Referring to the legal issues outlined by the policy, Cllr Theodoulou stated that the 
format of the proposed document would enable both operational and investment 
property to be acquired. 

The cabinet member confirmed that, in the event of the council having to purchase 
property under a partner agreement, members would be notified of the 
circumstances to warrant this arrangement.  

Having considered all of the information, including known proposals and the 
reasons for the recommendations, the report was noted. 

Subject to a minor amendment to the governance section of the report, (paragraph 
2.3.3), amended to state, ‘in those instances where the Property Board approve the 
business case, a decision report would be produced following the council’s 
governance process, including consultation with the Cabinet Member for Finance 
and Change’, Cabinet 

RESOLVED to:  

1) Approve the Policy, which sets out a governance framework to acquire 
property and request that Officers implement with immediate effect, and 

2) Request that Officers provide to Cabinet the Schedule of Acquisitions, as 
referred to in the Policy, in February 2018.

13. Interim Residual Waste Disposal Arrangements 

Cllr Nigel Moor, Cabinet Member for Fire, Planning and Infrastructure, sought 
approval of a short-term, interim arrangement for the disposal of residual waste in 
Gloucestershire, (covering the period between the date of expiry of the said 
contract on 6 August 2018, and the date on which the provision of services under 
the Gloucestershire Residual Waste Project at the Javelin Park ‘Energy from Waste 
Facility’ were due to commence).  

Outlining the background to the decision, Cllr Moor informed members that the 
contract for residual waste disposal had been awarded to Cory Environmental 
(Gloucestershire) Ltd in 2006. Extended in 2012, the contract was due to expire in 
August 2018, at which time it had been expected that the new energy from waste 
facility at Javelin Park would be fully operational, with no further landfill disposal 
required.

Due to unforeseen delays in the delivery programme of the Energy from Waste 
Facility, a gap had emerged in the contracted provision of residual waste disposal 
between expiry of the Cory landfill contract in August 2018, and the ‘go live’ date of 
the waste facility in July 2019.

Page 15



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a correct record at the next meeting

- 15 -

With waste disposal a vital core statutory requirement, the council have since 
reviewed the options to bridge this gap. The options include: - 
:

a) To go to market to procure a new, short term waste disposal contract 
to start in August 2018; 

b) To negotiate with Cory to vary the expiry date of the current contract; 

c) To disaggregate the elements of the current contract; seek to extend 
just the landfill element, and procure new contracts for the other 
elements (garden waste, composting, mixed waste, landfill 
monitoring).

Cllr Moor referred to the outcomes of a recent options appraisal, setting out the 
financial implications and associated risks of each course of action and available 
options. 

Proposing option b) as the preferred option; ‘to vary the current contract, and 
remove the significant risks around service provision and cost increases’, Cllr Moor 
clarified that, to approve this proposal would extend the contract for up to 18 
months, extending to when Javelin Park was expected to be fully operational, (July 
2019), and allowing for a reasonable contingency period of up to six months, 
extending into 2020. 

The anticipated value of the proposed contract extension, (included in the existing 
waste disposal budget), were reported at a value of between £16 million, (if the 
contract expired in July 2019), up to a maximum of £24 million, (should the contract 
run until January 2020). Members noted that a large proportion of the value of the 
contract related to landfill tax, the sum of which would be passed to the Department 
of Revenue and Customs by the contractor. 

Responding to questions about the future of the landfill site at Hempsted, (raised 
earlier in the meeting), Cllr Moor confirmed that Cory was currently working to 
extend the life of the landfill site to accommodate the proposed extension of the 
residual waste contract. The site will remain open during this period. On closure of 
the landfill site, (for new landfill), in either late 2019 or early 2020, Cory would 
continue to manage the site. 

Having considered all of the information, including known proposals and the 
reasons for the recommendations, Cabinet noted the report and,  

RESOLVED to: 

1) Extend the term of its current Waste Management Services Contract with 
Cory by 1 year and 6 months, (with the effect that it will expire on 10th January 
2020), by entering into a variation agreement with Cory for this purpose; and 

2) Delegate the completion and execution of the proposed variation agreement 
to the Commissioning Director, Communities and Infrastructure.

Page 16



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a correct record at the next meeting

- 16 -

14. Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) – 2018/19 to 2020/21 

Cllr Ray Theodoulou, Cabinet Member for Finance and Change, set out the process 
and context, (including timescales), for producing the Council Strategy and Medium 
Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) 2018/19 to 2020/21.

Cllr Theodoulou explained that the strategy would be developed alongside 
development of the council budget and MTFS, to ensure the Council was able to 
deliver the level of transformation necessary to meet the requirements of managing 
an affordable budget. Initial work on developing the new strategy had commenced 
at officer level, the details of which would be updated to reflect the council’s 
priorities and commitments. 

Members were advised that the financial settlement accepted in February 2016 
included an offer of financial security offered to all local authorities, covering the 
period up to 2019/20. The Council had accepted the offer as a minimum funding 
deal, to be supplemented with additional financial security in October 2016.  

Outlining current cost pressures on the council, the Cabinet Member reported a 
savings target of £18.5m would be required to overcome unavoidable spending 
costs during 2017/18. The proposals for achieving the savings would be reviewed 
and refined over time. Cllr Theodoulou advised members that the objective was to 
propose a ‘draft balanced budget’ for consideration at the December cabinet 
meeting.   

Members noted the proposed timescale and several other issues to be considered 
when formulating the new strategy and MTFS. These included; 100% business rate 
retention; the requirements of the recent Ofsted Inspection into Children’s Services; 
the funding required to meet the demands on Adult Social Care and the changes to 
the dedicated school’s grant and national funding formula for schools.  

Work on the budget needed to commence immediately in order to prepare for a 
final proposal in February 2018. Cllr Theodoulou emphasised the need to respond 
to ‘all eventualities’ and to be prudent in the council’s spending. 

Leader of the Council, Cllr Mark Hawthorne, endorsed this statement and 
acknowledged that a huge amount of work would be required. He noted that the 
Government’s Autumn Statement would undoubtedly have an impact on budget 
process.

Having considered all of the information, including known proposals and the 
reasons for the recommendations, Cabinet noted the report and,  

RESOLVED to   

Agree the proposed process for reviewing and developing the Council Strategy and 
three-year Medium Term Financial Strategy, covering the period 2018/19 to 
2020/21.

Page 17



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a correct record at the next meeting

- 17 -

15. Schedule of Disposals proposed to deliver Meeting the Challenge Targets 

Cllr Ray Theodoulou, Cabinet Member: Finance and Change, sought approval of 
the Schedule of Disposals proposed to meet the council’s three year ‘Meeting the 
Challenge’ capital receipt target of £60m during the period 2015/16 to 2017/18. 

Cllr Theodoulou and the Leader of the Council, Cllr Mark Hawthorne, confirmed the 
council was on target to achieve the £60m target, a position they described as ‘very 
encouraging’, particularly during the current period of financial pressure. 

Having considered all of the information, including known proposals and the 
reasons for the recommendations, Cabinet noted the report and, in line with the 
Policy for the Disposal of Property:  

RESOLVED to:  

1) Confirm that those sites described at Appendix A (Exempt) which have 
previously been declared surplus by Cabinet in February 2017 and not yet 
disposed of, continue to be declared surplus to requirements, and 

2) Declare the sites listed on the proposed Schedule of Disposals Appendix B 
(Exempt) surplus to the Council’s land and property requirements, and, 

In relation to both of these schedules, to delegate authority to the Head of Property 
Services to dispose of the sites in consultation with the Cabinet Member for 
Finance and Change.

Prior to the discussion, members were advised that, should cabinet wish to discuss 
the contents of the exempt information reported at Appendices A and B to the 
report, consideration would need to be given as to whether the press and public 
should be excluded from the meeting in accordance with Regulation 4(2)(b) of the 
Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information) 
(England) Regulations 2012. 

Cabinet agreed to consider the report without making reference to the exempt 
information.

Leader of Council

Meeting concluded at 11.25 am 

Page 18



1

TENDER AND AWARD OF RECYCLATE SERVICES UNDER THE
DYNAMIC PURCHASING SYSTEM FOR HOUSEHOLD RECYCLING CENTRES

 

Cabinet Date 15 November 2017

Fire Planning & 
Infrastructure Cllr Nigel Moor

Key Decision Yes

Background 
Papers Cabinet report 20 April 2016 “Options to deliver the Household Recycling 

Centre (HRC) Service”
Cabinet report 20 July 2016 “Direct Award of Twenty Seven 6 Month Interim 
Recycling Contracts and the Creation of a Dynamic Purchasing System 
(DPS) for the Delivery of Recyclate Services for the Household Recycling 
Centre Service”

Location/Contact 
for inspection of 
Background 
Documents

 http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=850
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=818

Main Consultees HRC Materials Contractors
Ubico

Planned Dates Tendering will take place over the coming 6 months.
Wood contract starts 1st January 2018.
Subject to approval, all other contracts to start on the 1st April 2018.

Divisional 
Councillor

All

Officer Andy Pritchard, Waste Strategy and Development Manager
Tel: 01452 427014
Email: andy.pritchard@gloucestershire.gov.uk     

Purpose of Report To seek Cabinet approval to:

1. Extend all current recyclate contracts (except for Wood) for a further 
period of two months; and

2. Tender and/or award new recyclate contracts for a term of three years 
(three years and three months in the case of the Wood contract) with an 
option to extend for up to a further year in each case, increasing the value of 
the new Wood, Metal and Cardboard contracts to facilitate this.

Page 19

Agenda Item 5



2

Recommendations That Cabinet authorises the Commissioning Director: Communities and 
Infrastructure to:

1) Extend the duration of all the existing recyclate contracts:

(a) awarded using the DPS; and
(b) those awarded directly outside of the DPS

as set out in paragraph 1.4 of this Report (with the exception of the 
current contract for the recycling of Wood) by two months in each 
case so each will terminate on 31st March 2018.

2) Using the HRC DPS;

a) procure and award a new contract for the provision of Wood 
recyclate services, the contract to have the term of three years and 
three months commencing on the 1st January 2018 with an option to 
extend for up to a further year and an estimated value of £2M over its 
full term.

b) procure and award a new contract for the provision of the remaining 
recyclate services as set out in paragraph 1.4 of this report, the 
contracts in each case to have the term of three years commencing 
on the 1st April 2018 with an option to extend for up to a further year 
and an estimated value of £1.5M over their full term for the new Metal 
and Cardboard contracts respectively.

3)   Where under the HRC DPS no contractors are registered for a Lot or 
where no bid or no viable bid is received in respect of a Lot to procure 
and direct award a recyclate contract in each case for those 
respective Lots with providers who are able to offer the Council best 
value for the provision of those respective services provided that the 
term of any such directly awarded contract shall be for one year with 
an option to extend for a further year.

Reasons for 
Recommendations

To recognise and implement the lessons learnt to date of materials trading in 
order to attract greater competition through more attractive contract lengths 
and ensure best value is achieved from the disposal of recyclate materials.

Resource 
Implications The procurement and awards described in this report will be undertaken 

using existing staff and financial resources within the context of the councils 
Meeting the Challenge programme.

The cost of implementing the recommendations will be met from within the 
existing budgets, and no budget increase is required.

Page 20



3

MAIN REPORT CONTENTS

1. Background

1.1 In July 2016 Cabinet gave approval to;

1) Direct award twenty seven 6 month interim recyclate contracts to each of 
the incumbent contractors for the period 7th August 2016 to 31st January 
2017; and

2) Establish and operate a five year EU compliant Dynamic Purchasing 
System (DPS) for the delivery of recyclate services to the Household 
Recycling Centre Service with an estimated total value of £5M.

1.2 The DPS is a pre-qualification system which allows the Council to assess the 
eligibility of contractors prior to allowing them to tender for their chosen 
services. The DPS consists of separate categories for 28 different recyclate 
materials. Contractors who are successful in joining the DPS and their 
chosen categories will remain eligible to bid for contracts for the duration of 
the DPS, and new contractors can join the DPS at any time, thereby 
increasing competition.

1.3 The July 2016 Cabinet approval included authorisation for the 
Commissioning Director (Communities and Infrastructure) to procure 
recyclate service contracts from contractors using the DPS up to the value of 
£499,000. It was further provided that any single contract award using the 
DPS with a value of £500,000 or more must be the subject of a separate 
Cabinet decision.

1.4 Accordingly, the DPS was used to procure new recyclate contracts when the 
interim contracts referred to in in paragraph 1.1.1 above expired. Those 
contracts were awarded for a term of twelve months and expire on 31st 
January 2018 (save for the Wood contract which was awarded for a term of 
11 months and expires on 31st December 2017). Details of those contracts 
and the current providers are set out in the following table;

Page 21



4

2. REVIEW OF MATERIALS TRADING ACHIEVEMENTS IN YEAR 1.

The Council provides 5 HRCs at a total operating cost of around £5M. Ubico 
commenced delivery of HRC operations in August 2016, at which point it was 
necessary for the Council to undertake its own materials trading arrangements. 
During late 2016 and early 2017 the materials trading DPS was established. This 
provided the basis for the award of twelve month contracts (eleven months in the 
case of the Wood contract) for materials recycling.

Depending upon the material type, contracts will incur either net income or net 
expenditure. This is determined by the markets. In addition, service costs for some 
materials include additional haulage costs. Ubico undertake much of the haulage 
with their own fleet at no extra cost to the Council, but where this is not the case (for 

Category 1 Asbestos – Grundon Waste Management Ltd
Category 3 Books – JMP Wilcox
Category 4 Re-use / Bric a Brac – A Webb
Category 5 Cans – Smiths (Gloucester) Limited
Category 6 Car Batteries – Smiths (Gloucester) Limited
Category 7 Cardboard – Printwaste
Category 8 Chemicals and Paint – Grundon Waste Management Ltd
Category 9 Gas Bottles – No bids via DPS. Direct award to Envik outside 
the DPS
Category 10 Flat Glass – Smiths (Gloucester) Limited
Category 11 Mixed Glass – Smiths (Gloucester) Limited
Category 12 Soil – Smiths (Gloucester) Limited
Category 13 Engine Oil – Slicker Recycling
Category 14 Mobile Phones – J R Padley
Category 15 Paper – Printwaste
Category 16 Plasterboard – Plasterboard Recycling Solutions
Category 17 Plastic Bottles – Smiths (Gloucester) Limited
Category 19 Printer Cartridges – J R Padley
Category 20 Rubble – Smiths (Gloucester) Limited
Category 21 Metals – Smiths (Gloucester) Limited
Category 23 Textiles – JMP Wilcox
Category 24 Tyres – Smiths (Gloucester) Limited
Category 25 Cooking Oil - No bids via DPS. Direct award to Living Fuels 
outside the DPS.
Category 26 Wood – South Wales Wood Limited

Page 22



5

example at very busy times or where distance is prohibitive) the contractor provides 
this service at extra cost. 

2.1 Materials for which a net income is achieved.

Net income is received for the following materials;

Books
Items for Reuse
Cans
Car Batteries
Cardboard
Mixed glass bottles
Paper
Plastic bottles
Metals
Textiles

Net income for these materials totalled £400,043 in the twelve month period between 
September 2016 and August 2017. The greatest income was achieved from 
Cardboard and Metals.

Where market fluctuations in the value of materials occurs, contracts are indexed to 
the current market value on a monthly basis. This applies to cans, car batteries, 
cardboard, glass bottles, paper, plastic bottles, metals and textiles. During the 
course of the year the value of glass bottles has reduced to the point at which 
income rates are now slightly negative (ie there is a small cost to recycle these). All 
other indexed materials have continued to deliver a net positive income.

2.2 Materials for which a net cost is incurred

The following materials are recycled or disposed of at net cost;

Asbestos
Chemicals and Paint
Gas bottles
Flat glass
Soil
Used engine oil
Plasterboard
Rubble
Tyres
Wood

Net expenditure for these materials totalled £905,452 in the twelve month period 
between September 2016 and August 2017. The highest single expenditure during 
this period was on Wood.

Mobile phones, printer cartridges and cooking oil are collected free of charge and do 
not generate either expenditure or income.

Page 23



6

2.3 Overall net income and expenditure position

The overall financial outturn position for all materials over the 12 month period is a 
net cost of £505k. This is close to the estimate made prior to the commencement of 
materials trading.

A detailed summary of income and expenditure will be provided to Cabinet in spring 
2018 following a full twelves months trading under the DPS.

2.4 Issues and lessons learnt

By undertaking this exercise over the past year, a number of issues have been 
identified and it is believed that greater value could potentially be gained from a 
number of these contracts as the Council  moves forward into year 2 and beyond.
 
2.4.1 Length of contracts

With the exception of the current contract for the recycling of Wood, all contracts 
awarded using the DPS were entered into for a 12 month period, after which time it 
will be necessary to procure new contracts using the DPS. 

Some Lots under the DPS did not attract interest from contractors and in those 
circumstances contracts were awarded directly to incumbent contractors for a 12 
month period to ensure continuity of service.

This approach allowed officers to monitor and control contract expenditure on 
contracts awarded in accordance with the DPS and to also ensure that all learning 
from year one contracts were able to be addressed for the remainder of the life of the 
DPS by modifying future contract requirements.

However, regularly procuring such short term contracts carries a number of 
disadvantages;

- Mobilisation; The time taken to mobilise new contractors varies from material 
to material. In many cases mobilisation is simple, and requires no special 
effort. However, in the case of wood, metals, plasterboard and chemicals 
contractors are required to invest in and locate new containers at the HRCs. 
Due to the lead time in procuring new containers contractor mobilisation has 
taken up to 3 months in some cases. Contractors who invest in new 
containers will reflect this in their costs to us. This has the effect of increasing 
the rates we pay, but also may put some contractors off bidding for such a 
short term contract.

- Another aspect of mobilisation is the setting up and bedding in of data and 
billing systems, which for some contractors has taken a number of months to 
establish correctly. Longer term contract awards would eliminate this as a 
regular issue.

- Attractiveness of Contracts; shorter contracts have lower value, and for some 
materials this gives very little time for contractors to recoup their setup costs 

Page 24



7

with no guarantee of future business, hence the prices offered can be less 
advantageous. By offering contracts of greater length and hence of greater 
value, the investment and mobilisation costs can be recovered and the 
contractor  has security of business for a longer period of time – encouraging 
more contractors to see the opportunity as attractive, resulting in a greater 
opportunity to improve prices.

It is therefore proposed that in the next round of procurement, all contracts 
under the DPS will be for a term that will expire on 31st March 2021 with 
option to extend for a further period of up to one year, rather than the 1 year 
term under the current contracts, in order to generate a potentially greater 
market interest. Increasing the term of contracts for the majority of materials 
can be achieved without the need for a further Cabinet decision. However, in 
the case of Wood, Metals and Cardboard the increased contract values will 
require a further Cabinet decision in accordance with the provisions of this 
Report. The proposed new contract value limits which would allow the Council  
to let longer contracts are a) £2M expenditure for the Wood recycling contract, 
and b) £1.5M income for both Cardboard and Metal recycling contracts. By 
extending the length of contracts, officers  believe that the council is  
positioning itself to stimulate a greater market interest and hence better value.

2.4.2 Contract start dates

Current contracts (awarded using the DPS and those awarded directly outside of the 
DPS) started in February 2017 and will run until the end of January 2018. By being 
out of step with our financial year in this way, additional workload is created close to 
year-end and the risk of mobilisation delays with new contractors could impact upon 
year-end reporting. It is proposed therefore that, with the exception of the current 
contract for Wood recycling, all current contracts awarded using the DPS and those 
which have been awarded directly outside of the DPs shall be varied to allow them to 
operate until March 31st 2018 after which time new contracts will be procured which 
will operate in step with the financial year. The proposed contract variations to those 
contracts awarded using the DPS are permissible under Regulation 72 (1)(e) of the 
Public Contract Regulations 2015, whereby the proposed variations are not 
considered substantial. Those contracts awarded directly outside of the DPS can be 
extended under the Council’s own Contract Standing Orders as in each case the 
services at this time are only capable of being provided by the incumbent provider in 
each case. An extension of the current contracts will provide the Council with an 
adequate period of mobilisation for the new contracts should that be required 
following procurement.

There are no proposals to extend the term of the current Wood recycling contract 
(which is due to expire on 31st December 2017) as we believe that the award of a 
new longer term wood recycling contract under the DPS which commences at the 
earliest possible opportunity would deliver savings to the Council in the form of 
improved recycling costs per tonne.

Page 25



8

3. CONCLUSION

3.1 Longer contract lengths are likely to provide better value rates for materials 
recycling compared to short contracts, offering reduced setup costs and 
improved administration efficiencies. For these reasons we will seek to 
increase future contract lengths and values as discussed above in order to 
achieve best value for the Council.

3.2 Recommendations;

That Cabinet authorises the Commissioning Director: Communities and 
Infrastructure to:

1) extend the duration of all the existing recyclate contracts:

(a) awarded using the DPS; and

(b) those awarded directly outside of the DPS

as set out in paragraph 1.4 of this Report (with the exception of the current 
contract for the recycling of Wood) by two months in each case so each will 
terminate on 31st March 2018.

2) Using the HRC DPS;

a) procure and award a new contract for the provision of Wood recyclate 
services, the contract to have the term of three years and three months 
commencing on the 1st January 2018 with an option to extend for up to a 
further year and an estimated value of £2M over its full term.

b) procure and award a new contract for the provision of the remaining 
recyclate services as set out in paragraph 1.4 of this report, the contracts 
in each case to have the term of three years commencing on the 1st April 
2018 with an option to extend for up to a further year and an estimated 
value of £1.5M over their full term for the new Metal and Cardboard 
contracts respectively.

3)   Where under the HRC DPS no contractors are registered for a Lot or 
where no bid or no viable bid is received in respect of a Lot to procure and 
direct award a recyclate contract in each case for those respective Lots 
with providers who are able to offer the Council best value for the 
provision of those respective services provided that the term of any such 
directly awarded contract shall be for one year with an option to extend for 
a further year.

Page 26



9

4.  OPTIONS

4.1 To agree with the recommendations detailed in this Report

or

4.2 to make no changes and to continue to award short term contracts under the 
DPS.

5. RISK ASSESSMENT

5.1 A decision to increase the lengths of recycling/disposal contracts awarded 
using the DPS is likely to result in reduced service costs by stimulating greater 
interest from contractors, hence greater competition between them. It will also 
reduce the impacts and issues created by shorter term contracts and the 
resulting frequent remobilisation of services. However, the risks associated 
with global commodity price fluctuations will remain. By maintaining an 
indexation approach to monthly pricing of materials (where such indexes 
exist) we aim to track the ups and downs of the market. Whilst this benefits us 
while the markets are buoyant, it maintains a risk to the Council if prices fall. 
However, it removes the risk from the contractor which should result in better 
contract rates.

Risks;

- Fluctuations in market prices for materials and haulage rates affect Council 
incomes and disposal costs. Indexed prices reduce contractor risk and attract 
improved pricing.

- Insufficient competition for recyclates results in poor value prices. More 
attractive contracts, through increased volume and value would help to 
address this and could encourage new suppliers to join the DPS.

- Administrative and setup costs impact upon prices. This can be addressed 
through longer contracts with greater efficiencies.

6.    EQUALITIES CONSIDERATIONS

6.1 A due regard statement is not needed because no material impact on any of 
the nine protected characteristics was identified relating to awarding these 
contracts. Any changes to the contracts will need to be considered separately.

7. PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT / FOLLOW-UP

7.1 The spending on these contracts will continue to be closely monitored and an 
annual report will be presented to Cabinet to show the level of expenditure 
and income achieved through the DPS.

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank



STONEHOUSE A419 IMPROVEMENT SCHEME 

CONTRACT PROCUREMENT AND ANCILLARY ORDERS

Cabinet Date 15 November 2017

Fire, Planning and 
Infrastructure Cllr Nigel Moor

Key Decision Yes

Background 
Documents

 A419 Stonehouse Improvements; Full Business Case (August 2017) 
 Stonehouse A419 Improvements; Full Business Case and Due Diligence 

Assessment Report (August 2017)
 Gloucestershire Strategic Economic Plan 2014 
 Adopted Local Transport Plan (LTP 3 2016)

Location/Contact 
for inspection of 
Background 
Documents

http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/roads-parking-and-rights-of-way/major-
projects/stonehouse-a419-improvements/
http://www.gfirstlep.com/
http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ltp3 

Main Consultees • Lead Cabinet Member 
• Local Member (Cllr L Williams)
• Stroud District Council
• Stroud Town Council
• Highways England
• Wide range of consultees as part of the statutory consultation exercise 

(Police/Ambulance/Freight & Haulage associations)
• Public share event  held on 20th and 22nd June 2017 (residents, 

general public and businesses)
Planned Dates • GCC Cabinet approval – November 2017

• Detailed design start – November 2017 
• Detailed design end – May 2018
• Issue tender documents – June 2018
• Tender assessment and award – August 2018
• Construction start – October 2018
• Construction end – Nov 2019

Divisional 
Councillor

Cllr Lesley Williams

Officer Simon Excell,  Lead Commissioner; Strategic Infrastructure
Simon.excell@gloucestershire.gov.uk

Scott Macaulay-Lowe, Team Leader; Major Schemes. Highways 
Commissioning 
scott.macaulay-lowe@gloucestershire.gov.uk

Page 29

Agenda Item 6

http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/roads-parking-and-rights-of-way/major-projects/stonehouse-a419-improvements/
http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/roads-parking-and-rights-of-way/major-projects/stonehouse-a419-improvements/
http://www.gfirstlep.com/
http://www.gfirstlep.com/
http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ltp3
mailto:Simon.excell@gloucestershire.gov.uk
mailto:scott.macaulay-lowe@gloucestershire.gov.uk


Purpose of Report  To seek Cabinet approval for the Commissioning Director: 
Communities & Infrastructure, to be authorised to conduct a compliant 
competitive tender process and to award a contract in respect of the 
A419 Improvement Scheme proposals;

 For the Commissioning Director: Communities & Infrastructure, to be 
authorised to make any other ancillary orders that might be required to 
successfully implement the scheme; and

 To seek Cabinet approval for the Commissioning Director: 
Communities & Infrastructure, to fund £0.52M from the existing 
Highways budget to enable works to start which will be recovered from 
the Growth Deal Fund Grant of £4.36M following a successful design 
and contract award.

Recommendations That Cabinet authorise the Commissioning Director, Communities and 
Infrastructure to:

(1) Conduct a compliant competitive tender process for the award of a 
contract to a single supplier for the construction of the Stonehouse 
A419 Improvement Scheme;

(2) Upon conclusion of the competitive tender process, and in consultation 
with the Lead Cabinet Member for Fire, Planning and Infrastructure, to 
enter into a contract with the preferred provider evaluated as offering 
the Council best value for money for delivery of the services.  In the 
event that the preferred provider for the contract is either unable or 
unwilling to enter into that contract with the Council then the Director, 
Communities and Infrastructure, is authorised to enter into such 
contract with the next willing highest placed suitably qualified provider;

(3) Make any other ancillary orders that might be required to successfully 
implement the scheme; and

(4) Use £0.52M of existing Highways budget to fund the design works 
which will be recovered from the grant providing the scheme is 
delivered.

Reasons for 
recommendations

The decision will enable the council to receive £4.36M of Grant funding and 
pursue the contract award for the scheme, which will provide the best 
opportunity to meet the timescales for project delivery. 

Resource 
Implications

The scheme will be funded by a Capital Growth Deal Grant of £4.36M 
through the GFirst LEP following the approval of the scheme at the LEP 
Board on the 10th October 2017. Appendix A sets out the capital costs 
associated with the scheme and provides a breakdown and time profile of 
project costs.

Page 30



£0.52M of GCC’s existing Highways budget will be required to fund the 
detailed design works which will be recovered from the Grant providing the 
scheme is delivered.

GCC has exiting resource within budget that will be used to deliver the 
scheme.

The scheme has been developed to align with the forecast £4.36m LEP 
budget allocation and construction cost estimates developed as part of the 
preliminary scheme design. Within the works estimate, an allowance of 
£1.28m has been allocated for the diversion of utilities apparatus across the 
four junctions. The detailed design estimate for the utility diversions will not 
be known until the detailed design stage following the approval of the full 
business case.

As stated in the County Council’s Constitution, ‘Directors are responsible for 
ensuring that variations in capital project estimates that occur during the 
course of a contract are contained within the resources allocated to that 
service’. The scheme’s costs will be monitored and managed accordingly.

Page 31



MAIN REPORT CONTENTS

1. Background 

The A419 corridor is located to the south of the County, and links Stroud to the M5 (Junction 
13). The A419 is a route of local importance connecting the Stroud Valley with the wider 
strategic network, in particular to the M5 which provides connections for freight and other 
traffic to Bristol, Gloucester, Cheltenham and the remainder of the UK. The A419 acts as the 
primary link for commuters travelling from Stroud to M5 Junction 13 (North/South). The land 
adjacent to the scheme and immediate surroundings consist of open farmland, residential 
developments and business parks.

The corridor currently experiences significant congestion and delays, particularly during peak 
hours at the key junctions identified via the scheme (detailed below). The proposed junction 
improvements aim to increase capacity, optimise the efficiency of the corridor and reduce 
journey time delays for all traffic using the A419, whilst also maintaining and improving access 
for businesses, and facilities for pedestrians and cyclists.

Gloucestershire’s Local Transport Plan (LTP3) sets out the transport strategy for the county 
encompassing the period from 2015 to 2031. In terms of the Overarching Strategy, the 
scheme contributes towards all of the key objectives as summarised below, from LTP3. In 
particular, the scheme contributes to the objective of supporting sustainable economic growth 
by reducing congestion on the route and improving journey times for all users. 

The key objectives which have been identified by the LEP are as follows, these also led to the 
provisional allocations of the funds; 

 Provide transport enabling works to support employment expansion at the Stroudwater 
Industrial Estate; 

 To reduce peak period congestion on the A419; 
 To support emerging strategic housing and employment growth sites at Stonehouse & 

Stroud; 
 To increase capacity, optimise the efficiency of the corridor and reduce delays for 

general traffic, HGVs and buses, whilst also providing adequate provision for 
pedestrians and cyclists; 

 To support planned growth (including on land near to the corridor), improve access to 
jobs and support the efficient movement of goods.

The Full Business Case process for transport schemes is designed to ensure that investments 
are directed at the right schemes, and that these are managed and delivered in the best way. 
This ensures that transport investment addresses important issues in an effective way, 
delivering value for money. 

The core of each stage of the Transport Business Case is the 5-Case Model which ensures 
that schemes: 

 Are supported by a robust case for change that fits with wider public policy objectives 
– the ‘strategic case’; 

 Demonstrate value for money – the ‘economic case’; 

Page 32



 Are commercially viable – the ‘commercial case’; 
 Are financially affordable – the ‘financial case’; and 
 Are achievable – the ‘management case’. 

The Full Business Case developed for this scheme uses this 5-case model in an appropriate 
and proportionate way to demonstrate the merit of investing in the proposals to the A419 
Corridor improvements.

2. Proposed improvements

The current preliminary design of the scheme comprises of a package of junction 
improvements and carriageway widening along the A419, with the key locations identified as 
follows: 

 Chipmans Platt Roundabout;
 Oldends Lane Roundabout;
 Downton Road Signals; 
 Section between Downton Road and Horsetrough Roundabout; and
 Horsetrough Roundabout.

Existing access to businesses will remain, and the scheme will maintain or improve all existing 
footpaths and cycle paths. Additional cycle infrastructure will be added at Chipmans Platt and 
Horsetrough roundabouts in addition to a new, shared-use, off carriageway cycle facility 
between Horsetrough roundabout and Downton road signals. Improvements to the National 
Cycle Route running through this area will be considered during detailed design. 

During the design phase, consideration will be given to accesses in the area between 
Horsetrough Roundabout and Downton Road signals where the westbound carriageway is 
increasing from one to two lanes. The scheme is expected to improve access and reduce 
severance for pedestrians as an indirect consequence of the corridor improvement. 

A full review, together with assessing the impact through traffic modelling packages has been 
undertaken to establish the most appropriate scheme for the corridor, and the preferred 
scheme will be taken forward (subject to LEP approval) to detailed design and construction.

The Full Business Case, drawings and associated appendixes can be found, in full, online at; 
http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/roads-parking-and-rights-of-way/major-projects/stonehouse-
a419-improvements/

Page 33

http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/roads-parking-and-rights-of-way/major-projects/stonehouse-a419-improvements/
http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/roads-parking-and-rights-of-way/major-projects/stonehouse-a419-improvements/


3. Funding breakdown

The scheme will be funded by a Capital Growth Deal Grant of £4.36M through the 
GFirst LEP following the scheme’s approval at the LEP Board on the 10th October 
2017. Appendix A sets out the capital costs associated with the scheme and provides a 
breakdown and time profile of project costs.

£0.52M of GCC’s existing Highways budget will be required to fund the detailed design 
works which will be recovered from the Grant providing the scheme is delivered.

Funding breakdown:
Year Funding allocation 

(Highways Capital)
LEP funding profile

Profiled previous year’s 
spend to April 2017

£145,014

2017/18 £375,000 £520,014
2018/19 £1,246,971
2019/20 £2,592,921

Total £520,014 £4,359,906
 
Current budget estimates are based on updated preliminary designs (Amey).

4. Options

The options for Cabinet are as follows:

 Option A: To authorise the Commissioning Director: Communities and 
Infrastructure to progress the scheme as set out in this report’s 
recommendations; or

 Option B: To decline this authorisation to the Commissioning Director: 
Communities and Infrastructure.

5. Risk Assessment  

An up to date risk register for the scheme exists and has been regularly updated in line 
with the GCC Risk Management process, in order to investigate, manage and mitigate 
key risks.

The key risks can be summarised as follows:

1) Exact details and cost of required utility diversions are currently not finalised 
at preliminary design stage. Cost of diversions could be higher than expected 
and higher than allowance in budget. Further discussion and review to be 
undertaken with utility companies. Utility costs included within scheme budget 
and risk allocation.

Page 34



2) The capital costs of the scheme increase as a result of factors uncovered at 
site surveys and detailed design stages, such as structural work to canal 
bridge, additional drainage or further geotech retaining structures. Scheme 
costs will be reviewed again during detailed design. 

3) A suitable detailed design cannot be found and therefore it does not provide 
Value for Money (VfM) to proceed with the scheme which would leave GCC 
picking up the £0.52M design costs as a revenue pressure that cannot be 
capitalised against the finished project.  An outline design has already been 
identified so we believe this is a very low risk and we would work to redesign 
it to ensure the scheme delivers VfM.  

Overall, the risks are well understood and are being eliminated or mitigated as the 
project moves forward. There are, however, a number of outstanding risks that could 
have an impact on the design and cost of the project. Securing the required land is the 
next critical step in managing the project’s risk profile down. Risks will continue to be 
actively monitored and any significant changes affecting the scope of the project will be 
reported to the Lead Cabinet Member.

6. Officer Advice

That Cabinet approve the recommendations as set out in this report.

7. Equalities considerations

This scheme is included in the County Council’s adopted Local Transport Plan 2016 which 
includes analysis of data in regard to user needs. The detailed design of the final scheme will 
be undertaken in accordance with relevant guidance in relation to equalities and safety. 

8. Consultation feedback

Public Share Events were held in Stonehouse Town Council hall on Tuesday 20th and 
Thursday 22nd July 2017 between 14:00 – 19:30 on a drop in basis. Presentation boards were 
provided with large scale plans and graphics together with scheme introduction, background 
and FAQs. The event was manned by scheme designers and engineers together with the 
GCC project manager. Attendees were offered a personal tour of information available and in 
depth discussions about issues, concerns, improvements etc. Most attendees took the 
opportunity to ask questions and give their own views of the scheme using feedback forms 
that were available for people to leave comments. Across the two sessions there were over 
180 attendees, many of whom chose to leave comments on the day using the forms provided 
or via email to the GCC major projects inbox.

Pre-consultation included engagement with key stakeholders and interested parties, these 
included the local member, local Town and Parish Councils, access and rights of way groups 
and scheme users and emergency services. 

Page 35



A full list of consultees and public consultation feedback and responses can be found in the 
Full Business Case, online http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/roads-parking-and-rights-of-
way/major-projects/stonehouse-a419-improvements/

In addition to the above, the Council has also carried out an extensive consultation on the 
adopted Local Transport Plan (2016), in which this scheme is listed as a short-term capital 
priority (2015-21).   

9. Performance Management/Follow-up 

GCC have set up a clear and robust structure to provide accountability and an effectual 
decision making process for the management of the LEP funded schemes. Each scheme will 
have a designated project manager who will be an appropriately trained and experienced 
member of GCC staff. 

Scheme costs and delivery will continue to be managed in accordance with business case 
objectives and the monthly meetings of the Local Transport Plan Management Board, 
attended by the relevant Lead Commissioner and Commissioning Director.

Page 36

http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/roads-parking-and-rights-of-way/major-projects/stonehouse-a419-improvements/
http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/roads-parking-and-rights-of-way/major-projects/stonehouse-a419-improvements/


Report Title
Stonehouse A419 Improvement Scheme – Contract 
Procurement and Ancillary Orders

Statutory Authority Gloucestershire County Council

Relevant County Council 
policy

Adopted Local Transport Plan (LTP 3) 2016

Resource Implications The scheme will be funded by a Capital Growth Deal Grant of 
£4.36M through the GFirst LEP following the approval of the 
scheme at the LEP Board on the 10th October 2017. Appendix 
A sets out the capital costs associated with the scheme and 
provides a breakdown and time profile of project costs.

£0.52M of GCC’s existing Highways budget will be required to 
fund the detailed design works which will be recovered from the 
Grant providing the scheme is delivered.

GCC has exiting resource within budget that will be used to 
deliver the scheme.

The scheme has been developed to align with the forecast 
£4.36m LEP budget allocation and construction cost estimates 
developed as part of the preliminary scheme design. Within the 
works estimate, an allowance of £1.28m has been allocated for 
the diversion of utilities apparatus across the four junctions. 
The detailed design estimate for the utility diversions will not be 
known until the detailed design stage following the approval of 
the full business case.

As stated in the County Council’s Constitution, ‘Directors are 
responsible for ensuring that variations in capital project 
estimates that occur during the course of a contract are 
contained within the resources allocated to that service’. The 
scheme’s costs will be monitored and managed accordingly.

Sustainability checklist:

Partnerships Continued liaison with Sustrans (cycling charity)

Decision Making and 
Involvement

During the scheme delivery phase, Gloucestershire County 
Council retains governance and control of the delivery of the 
Contract. Gloucestershire County Council will act as the client 
under the contract with a Contractor appointed via a 

Page 37



competitive tender process. 

Representatives from Gloucestershire County Council or their 
highways maintenance contractor will be appointed to 
undertake the project management and supervision roles and 
will be responsible for managing the Contract during the works.

Economy and Employment Will enable housing and employment development to be 
brought forward; 

Enables development (housing; employment) to take place, 
where residents or employees have access to an improved 
highway network; 

Improvement in quality and reduction in travel time for all 
vehicles. 

Caring for people The scheme is also expected to have a beneficial impact by 
reducing cyclist and pedestrians’ accidents. The proposed 
crossing modifications at Oldends Lane and Downton Road will 
give pedestrians and cyclists a safe place to cross and 
navigate the route and in turn avoid crossings occurring at 
random points which would increase the risk of a collision. 

Social Value This scheme has the potential to increase physical activity. The 
improved crossing points will provide a safe place for both 
pedestrians and cyclists to cross this will reduce severance for 
potential users and improve confidence in using the route via 
such method.

Natural Environment’ 
including Ecology 
(Biodiversity)

The key impacts relate to the loss of habitat, in particular the 
loss of unimproved and semi-improved neutral grassland within 
the roadside verges at Chipmans Platt roundabout, which is 
also a non-statutory designated site – Conservation Road 
verge 2014. 

Pre-construction species surveys and checks to existing 
badger setts should be undertaken for badgers, otter and water 
vole on the Stroudwater Navigation and vegetation clearance 
undertaken outside of the bird breeding season if possible or 
under ecological guidance. 

Reasonable Avoidance Measures (RAMs) should be employed 
regarding amphibians and reptiles. 

Work should be undertaken in accordance with ‘BS5873:2012 
Trees’ in relation to design, demolition and construction to 
ensure that mature trees, hedgerows and tree belts in close 
proximity are not harmed.

Page 38



Education and Information As part of any quality tender evaluation, the successful 
Contractor will need to outline their strategy for community 
engagement, (school visits/weekly site bulletins/social media 
and comms plan). 

Tackling Climate Change Carbon Emissions Implications? Positive - The impact 
produced by the implementation of the scheme is beneficial 
(CO2 reduction) and quantified at £0.93 million.
Vulnerable to climate change? No

Due Regard Statement Has a Due Regard Statement been completed?    Yes
This scheme is included in the County Council’s adopted Local 
Transport Plan (2016) which includes analysis of data in regard 
to user needs. The detailed design of the final scheme will be 
undertaken in accordance with relevant guidance in relation to 
equalities and safety. 

This
Human rights Implications None.

Consultation 
Arrangements

Public Share Events were held in Stonehouse Town Council 
hall on Tuesday 20th and Thursday 22nd July 2017 between 
14:00 – 19:30 on a drop in basis. Presentation boards were 
provided with large scale plans and graphics together with 
scheme introduction, background and FAQs. 

Pre-consultation included engagement with key stakeholders 
and interest parties included the Local member, Town and 
Parish Councils, access and rights of way groups, scheme 
users and emergency services.

Page 39



Appendix A

Breakdown and time profile of project costs

Scheme Cost Breakdown and Profile
Costs by year (£) Year of estimateProject Cost 

Components
Capital Cost 
items    

*Cost 
estimate 
Status 
(O/P/D/T)

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21+

Design and 
Management

Design fees

Site surveys

Construction 
supervision

P

P

P

£320,000

£30,000

£33,855

£120,000

£33,856

£120,000

Construction Construction

Utility 
diversions

Ongoing 
maintenance

P

O

O

£535,504

£475,000

£1,146,252

£805,000

£1,933pa

Contingency (As 
appropriate)

P £252,626 £487,813

Total Cost Including 
risk 
adjustment 
at 15% and 
optimism 
bias at 10%

P £350,000 £1,416,985 £2,592,921 £1,933pa

O = Outline estimate / P = Preliminary estimate 

Page 40



DOMICILIARY CARE – URBAN DYNAMIC PURCHASING SYSTEM (DPS)

Cabinet Date 15 November 2017

Adult Social Care

Vulnerable Adults 
and 
Commissioning

Cllr Kathy Williams

Cllr Roger Wilson

Key Decision Yes

Background 
Documents

 Meeting the Challenge 2 : Together We Can (Gloucestershire County 
Council’s Strategy 2015-2018

 Cabinet Key Decision – Domiciliary Care 10 June 2015
 Due regard statement 2015

Location / Contact 
for inspection of 
Background 
Documents

 Cabinet Key Decision – Domiciliary Care 10 June 2015 
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/s25092/Item%205%20-
%20Domiciliary%20Care%20Covering%20Report.pdf 

 Due regard statement
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/s25136/Item%205%20-
%20Due%20Regard%20Statement%20-%20Domiliciary%20Care.pdf

Main Consultees Full consultation was carried out as part of the original tender process 
2014/15.  

This adjustment to the original proposal has been subject to and is in 
response to ongoing engagement with the following:

 Urban domiciliary care providers 
 Rural domiciliary care providers 
 Gloucestershire Care Providers Association 
 Gloucestershire Clinical Commissioning Group
 Internal GCC staff 

Planned Dates Ongoing

Divisional 
Councillor

Cheltenham and Gloucester divisions 

Officer Donna Miles, Lead Commissioner
0300 421 1748 / 07823 662122
donna.miles@gloucestershire.gov.uk

Page 41

Agenda Item 7

http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/s25092/Item%205%20-%20Domiciliary%20Care%20Covering%20Report.pdf
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/s25092/Item%205%20-%20Domiciliary%20Care%20Covering%20Report.pdf
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/s25092/Item%205%20-%20Domiciliary%20Care%20Covering%20Report.pdf
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/s25136/Item%205%20-%20Due%20Regard%20Statement%20-%20Domiliciary%20Care.pdf
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/s25136/Item%205%20-%20Due%20Regard%20Statement%20-%20Domiliciary%20Care.pdf


Purpose of Report To approve the establishment of a Dynamic Purchasing System (DPS) for 
the provision of care for vulnerable and older people in the urban zones of 
Cheltenham and Gloucester. 

Recommendations That Cabinet delegates authority to the Commissioning Director: Adults (and 
DASS) to: -  
 

1) Ensure an EU compliant competitive process by establishing a 
Dynamic Purchasing System (DPS) for the provision of care for 
vulnerable and older people in the urban zones of Cheltenham and 
Gloucester until 30 September 2023; and

2) Throughout the term of the DPS, to admit or remove domiciliary 
providers to the DPS in accordance with the required selection criteria 
or any revised selection criteria set out in the DPS; and 

3) To award packages of care to domiciliary providers on the DPS where 
the Lead Providers are unable to meet the assessed demand from 
health and social care.

Reasons for 
recommendations

To allow the Council to source care in the urban areas from domiciliary care 
providers other than Lead Providers using a pre-approved Dynamic 
Procurement System as opposed to purchasing on an ‘as and when’ basis.

Resource 
Implications There are no additional financial implications as this does not represent an 

additional commitment and is simply a rationalising of the existing 
contracting processes. The overall budget for this area in 2017/18 is 
expected to be £17.2m

Page 42



MAIN REPORT CONTENTS

Background 

1. This key decision follows previous decisions taken by Cabinet on 10 June 2015 to 
authorise the procurement of community based personal care services, including 
health care when commissioned on behalf of health partners where: 

a. Contracts for the two urban areas would be delivered by one or two prime 
providers for each area. 

b. For the rest of the county, it was agreed that a simplified application process 
be used to build an “any qualified provider” list – known as a “Dynamic 
Procurement System”.  This has resulted in a mix of providers and allowed 
the full participation of small and medium sized enterprises that could 
otherwise be discouraged.

2. The contracts for the urban lead provider were let in October 2016 following a 
competitive dialogue tender process. Both areas were each awarded to a single 
provider, both of whom were new to the county. 

3. The urban contracts allowed for the lead providers to arrange the sub-contracting of 
care packages that they could not directly provide. The two lead urban providers 
have had, and continue to have, difficulty in recruiting sufficient staff to meet the 
Council’s requirement and establishing sub-contracting with other providers.  This 
has resulted in the need to place some packages with other providers on an as and 
when basis. As a consequence the Council can be subjected to variable rates and 
providers may require pre-qualification which could cause delays in providing care. 

4. Dynamic Procurement Systems are already used in rural areas in Gloucestershire to 
provide domiciliary care with some success and extending them to urban areas 
would  be a logical step

Options

5. As a consequence there are two options available to the Council, namely;

a. Continue to use other care providers other than the Lead Providers, on an ‘as 
and when’ basis to meet demand in Cheltenham and Gloucester.

b. Set up an ‘any qualified provider list’ urban Dynamic Purchasing System to 
support the two lead urban providers to meet demand. This will result in a 
tiered model with packages offered in the order of lead provider, lead 
provider’s sub-contractor, and finally Urban DPS. This will maximise the 
potential number of providers who are available to respond to the need for 
domiciliary care and provide a degree of competition. By placing control 
about how capacity is managed with the Council’s brokerage team we will 
allow the lead providers the opportunity to increase their capacity at the same 
time as limiting the number of spot purchases. 

Page 43



Risk Assessment  

6. The key risk is the commitment of providers, both existing lead providers and 
potential new providers, which will be important in taking forward the tiered model.  
Ongoing engagement and support of providers is a key part of the proposed model. 
The Council’s brokerage team will continue to work across all providers to ensure 
that there is active interest in any packages placed on the DPS. 

7. By way of benefit it is believed that introducing an urban DPS, replicating the system 
for purchasing packages of care in rural areas, will also allow greater transparency 
to providers than ad-hoc purchasing arrangements.

Officer Advice

8. It is recommended that Cabinet agree to Option b and authorise the establishing of 
an “any qualified provider” urban DPS system in Cheltenham and Gloucester.
 

Equalities considerations

9. The original Due Regard Statement relating to the Cabinet decision on Domiciliary 
Care taken in June 2015 has been reviewed and in relation to the decisions sought 
in this report it is identified that the positive and beneficial impacts on equalities will 
continue.   

Consultation feedback

10.No formal Consultation has been undertaken for this change.  This change is in 
response to ongoing communication with providers, via the GCPA’s provider 
forums, and Gloucestershire CCG as part of integrated commissioning. 

Performance Management / Follow-up 

11.This will come under existing arrangements for personal care services.

Page 44



Report Title Domiciliary Care - Urban Dynamic Purchasing System (DPS)

Statutory 
Authority

Care Act 2014

Relevant County 
Council policy

Growing Older in Gloucestershire 

Resource 
Implications

There are no additional financial implications as this does not represent 
an additional commitment and is simply a rationalising of the existing 
contracting processes. The overall budget for this area in 2017/18 is 
expected to be £17.2m

Sustainability 
checklist:

As outlined in previous Cabinet Paper 2015.

Partnerships

Decision Making 
and Involvement

Economy and 
Employment

Caring for people

Social Value

Built Environment

Natural 
Environment’ 
including Ecology 
(Biodiversity)

Education and 
Information

Tackling Climate 
Change

As outlined in previous Cabinet Paper 2015.

Page 45



Due Regard 
Statement

Original DRS link 
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/s25136/Item%205%20-
%20Due%20Regard%20Statement%20-%20Domiliciary%20Care.pdf 
Has a Due Regard Statement been completed?     Yes for the original 
Domiciliary Care decision in June 2015.

A copy of the full Due Regard Statement  can be accessed on 
GLOSTEXT via 
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/uuCoverPage.aspx?bcr=1

Alternatively a hard copy is available for inspection from Jo Moore, 
Democratic Services Unit, e-mail: jo.moore@gloucestershire.gov.uk.

Human rights 
Implications

As outlined in previous Cabinet Paper 2015.

Consultation 
Arrangements

As outlined in previous Cabinet Paper 2015.

Page 46

http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/s25136/Item%205%20-%20Due%20Regard%20Statement%20-%20Domiliciary%20Care.pdf
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/s25136/Item%205%20-%20Due%20Regard%20Statement%20-%20Domiliciary%20Care.pdf
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/uuCoverPage.aspx?bcr=1
mailto:jo.moore@gloucestershire.gov.uk


1

FINANCIAL MONITORING REPORT: 2017/18

Cabinet Date 15 November 2017

Finance and 
Change 

Cllr Ray Theodoulou

Key Decision Yes

Other Documents MTFS to 15 February 2017 County Council, and Financial Monitoring Reports 
to Cabinet meetings on 19 July 2017 and 27 September 2017

Main Consultees Corporate Management Team, Senior Officers, Cabinet Members.

Divisional 
Councillor

County Wide

Officers Jo Walker, Strategic Finance Director (01452) 328469
joanna.walker@gloucestershire.gov.uk

Paul Blacker, Head of Financial Management (01452) 328999 
paul.blacker@gloucestershire.gov.uk

Jayne Fuller, Corporate Finance Manager (01452) 328926
jayne.fuller@gloucestershire.gov.uk

Purpose of Report To provide an update on the year-end forecast for the 2017/18 County 
Council’s Revenue and Capital Budgets

Key 
Recommendations That the Cabinet:

1. Notes the forecast revenue year end position as at the end of September 
2017 for the 2017/18 financial year of a net £0.087 million underspend.

2.  Agrees the following revenue contributions to capital of:

2.1  £0.100 million from Support Services to the ICT capital 
programme to provide Wi-Fi in Children’s Services office 
accommodation.

2.2 £0.258 million from Highways to support the Highways Capital 
Programme

3. Approves the following budget virements:

3.1 the 2016/17 unallocated Adults Social Care Levy of £2.5 
million be permanently allocated to Learning Disabilities

3.2 the one off Adult Social Care Support Grant of £1.541 million 
is allocated to support Older People/Physical Disabilities and 
Mental Health pressures in the current year.

Page 47

Agenda Item 8

mailto:joanna.walker@gloucestershire.gov.uk
mailto:paul.blacker@gloucestershire.gov.uk
mailto:jayne.fuller@gloucestershire.gov.uk


2

4. Approves the transfer of £5 million from one off savings in the 
Corporate and Technical budget to the Transformation Reserve. 

5. Approves £0.71 million from the Transformation Reserve to support costs 
relating to the implementation of the Ofsted Improvement Plan. 

6. Approves a £10 million pre-payment to the Gloucestershire LGPS Fund to 
generate revenue savings as outlined in the report.

7. Notes the forecast capital year end position for 2017/18 of £9.815 
million slippage.

8. Approves the following changes to the Capital Programme:- 

8.1A transfer of £2.521 million of existing C&I unallocated capital funding 
(made up of £1.727 million of Highways, £0.478 million of Structural 
Maintenance and £0.316 million of Integrated Transport) to fund the 
additional works costs on phase one of Cinderford Northern Quarter 
Spine Road following on from the July 2015 Cabinet decision to proceed 
with the project.

8.2An increase of £3.014 million to the Highways Capital budget, funded by 
£2.700 million DfT Grant for the Cross Keys Roundabout, £0.258 million 
of revenue contributions from Highways revenue budgets and £0.056 
million from external contributions.

8.3An increase of £0.198 million to the Infrastructure Capital budget of the 
Saturn Multi Modal Transport model, funded from the Transformation 
Reserve. 

8.4An increase of £0.100 million in the ICT Capital programme budget to 
provide Wi-Fi in Children’s Services office accommodation. This will be 
funded by a revenue contribution from Support Services. 

8.5A new capital scheme at Bourton-on-the-Water Primary, funded by 
£0.754 million developer s106 contributions.

8.6Notes transfer of £0.360 million from the ‘Sandford Park House 
Dilapidation Costs’ scheme in the Adults Capital Programme to the 
AMPS Capital Programme to reflect the current management and 
reporting of these works.

8.7Notes the transfer of £0.375 million from the ‘Locality Solutions’ scheme 
in Children & Families Capital Programme to the AMPS Capital 
Programme to reflect the current management and reporting of these 
works.

9. Notes the risks and opportunities associated with entering into a  
Gloucestershire 100% Business Rate Retention pilot and:- 

9.1Continues to support the application to the Government to pilot 100% 
Business Rates Retention in 2018/2019 for Gloucestershire.

Page 48



3

9.2Authorise the Director: Strategic Finance, in consultation with the 
Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Finance and Change, to 
commit Gloucestershire County Council to entering into the pilot for 
100% Business Rates Retention in 2018/2019 for Gloucestershire in the 
event the bid to DCLG is successful.

9.3Notes that in the event the pilot bid is unsuccessful then the Council will 
remain in the Gloucestershire Business Rates Pool for 2018/2019.

 Resource 
Implications These are detailed within the report

Page 49



4

Revenue Expenditure 2017/18

A. Revenue Forecast  Outturn Position 2017/18

1. The current forecast of the year end revenue position, based on actual expenditure 
at the end of September 2017 and forecasts made in October 2017 is an 
underspend of £0.087 million. (0.02% of the budget).  This position has improved 
since the last report in September, reflecting a reduction in the over spend in 
Communities and Infrastructure (now showing balanced), additional savings in 
corporate and technical budgets, offsetting a slight increase in Childrens and 
Families.

2. Details of the forecast year end position, analysed by service area is provided in the 
table below and the narrative that follows.  

Directorate Breakdown for Cabinet Report - Position as at the end of Sept 2017

Variance

%

£000 £000 £000 % £000 £000

Adults 145,007 145,007 0 0.0% 0 0 

Public Health 24,912 24,912 0 0.0% 0 0 

Children & Families 97,995 104,041 6,046 6.2% 5,911 135 

Communities & 
Infrastructure

89,637 89,637 0 0.0% 988 -988 

Business Support Services 26,383 26,383 0 0.0% 0 0 

Support Services 
Recharges

-26,383 -26,383 0 0.0% 0 0 

Total for Services 357,551 363,597 6,046 1.7% 6,899 -853 

Technical & Corporate 49,794 43,661 -6,133 -12.3% -5,026 -1,107 

Total 407,345 407,258 -87 0.0% 1,873 -1,960 

Forecast 
Variance 

Previously 
reported 

Service Area
2017/18 
Budget

Forecast 
Outurn 

Position

Change in 
variance 

Forecast 
Outurn 

Variance

Page 50



5

3. Commentary and main reasons for the forecast outturn positions are provided in the 
following sections.

Adult Social Care

4. The forecast outturn position for Adult Social Care is breakeven, with an underlying 
service overspend of £5.053 million offset by Adult Care Levy and grant funding , as 
below;

Sep-17 Jul-17
Learning Disabilities (LD) (External Care) £4.077m 4.418m
Older People/Physical Disabilities (OP/PD) (External Care) £0.316m 0.046m
Mental Health (MH) Services £0.478m 0.486m
Community Equipment Service (CES) and Telecare (£0.031m) (0.000m)
Other Services £0.258m 0.591m
Unallocated Budgets (£0.045m) (0.000m)
Underlying Service Variance £5.053m 5.541m

Less: Adult 16/17 Social Care Levy (permanent) (£2.500m) (2.500m)
Less: Adult 17/18 Social Care Levy (committed 2018/19) (£1.012m) (0.000m)
Less: Adult Social Care Support Grant (temporary) (£1.541m) (1.541m)
Transfers from Adult Care Reserve (temporary) (£0.000m) (1.500m)
Reported Position £0.000m 0.000m

5. The amount required from the Adult Care Reserve may change as the year 
progresses and outturn forecasts are refined. At this stage no formal request is 
being made to Cabinet for the use of this Reserve.  This will be done when there is 
greater certainty about the amount of reserve required to support the 2017/18 
budget.  Total reserve balance available is £4.226 million. This total includes £1.250 
million provision for two disputed Ordinary Residence cases (not included as 
commitments in the forecast).

6. The £10.598m Improved Better Care Fund (iBCF) Plan has been approved. Detailed 
work has now commenced with Lead Commissioners to understand the spend, the 
timeline, the funding flows, and the impact on the Adult Single Programme and 
overall Adults financial position.  The Director of Integration will be reporting the 
budget position monthly to Adult Social Care Management Team (ASMT) and the 
Joint Commissioning Partnership Executive group (JCPE).  It is anticipated that 
there will be a positive impact on individual budgets, and therefore the overall 
position, as individual iBCF projects are implemented.

7. Savings programmes for all client groups are now integrated under the Adults Single 
Programme (ASP) and monitored through the Adult Programme Board. The impact 
on operational budgets and performance is managed by the Head of Social Care, 
working with Commissioning and Support Service colleagues.  

Page 51



6

8. Learning Disability External Care is forecast to overspend by £4.077 million 
(compared to £4.418 million previously). The change in the position is mainly due to 
slippage in forecast savings of £0.630 million, offset by funding for MTFS cost 
pressures of £0.949 million. This decrease in the level of 2017/18 forecasted 
savings follows a review by LD commissioning & operational managers which 
identified what savings can be achieved in year and considered what progress has 
been made in all workstreams as well as the challenges identified to date. These 
challenges include the need for a longer lead-in time to achieve savings and staff 
capacity to support these.

9. The overspend is mainly due to budget savings reductions not being matched by 
forecast savings to date. It is important to note that £0.533 million of savings are 
forecast for the remaining six months of the current financial year, with in-year ECM 
targets of £0.564 million still to be achieved.  The risk associated with achieving 
these savings is reviewed on a monthly basis by LD Operations and Lead 
Commissioner to ensure forecasts are realistic. Known commitments against 
Ordinary Residence, Transforming Care and Complex Transitions have been met 
from funds held for these specific purposes,  with £0.949 million uncommitted in-
year now offset against the overspend. Funding has also been set aside for inflation 
and National Living Wage (NLW) cost pressures.  

10.Given the forecast over spend it is recommended that the 2016/17 unallocated Adult 
Social Care Levy of £2.5 million is permanently allocated to Learning Disabilities via 
a permanent budget virement under financial regulations.

11.Older People and Physical Disabilities External Care is overspending by £0.316 
million (previously £0.046 million). The increase mainly relates to costs under the 
OSJ Contract (£0.462 million), offset by transfer of NLW funding (£0.079 million) and 
a £0.118 million increase to forecast savings.

12.Mental Health is forecasting a £0.478 million overspend (previously £0.486million), 
relating to budget managed on GCC’s behalf by 2Gether NHSFT (2G), offset by 
available MTFS funding.  The Lead Commissioner is negotiating an appropriate 
level of funding transfer to 2G, as well as an associated savings target. This is still 
progressing positively. The decrease in overspend relates to the External Care 
budget.

13.Given the forecast over spends above it is recommended that a temporary virement 
is made using the one off Adults Social Care Support Grant of £1.541 million to 
temporarily support Older People/Physical Disabilities and Mental Health pressures 
in the current year.

14.The Community Equipment Service (CES)/ Telecare budgets are reported as 
underspent by £0.031 million.  The GCC CES commissioning budget is showing a 
£0.195 million underspend, relating to funding not yet allocated to the Pool.  The 
Lead Commissioner (OP/ BCF) has confirmed that Disabled Facilities Grant (DFG) 

Page 52



7

support will be available in this financial year to offset the underlying overspend in 
the CES Pooled Budget. Telecare is forecasting a £0.164 million overspend, due to 
activity levels being higher than expected. 

15.Other Services comprise all staffing budgets for Adult Social Care, as well as a 
number of specific commissioned contracts.  The forecast position for these services 
nets to a £0.258 million overspend. including;

a. £1.343 million significant overspends; slippage on the reshaping of LD in-
house services (£0.929 million), LD staffing costs which have resulted from 
the reduction in temporary joint funding for key projects (£0.163 million), and 
the OP/PD Reablement Service, managed by Gloucestershire Care Services 
(£0.251 million).

b. £1.057 million significant underspends; OP/PD Integrated Social Care 
Management (ISCM) teams, due largely to vacancies, net of an income 
shortfall in a residential unit (£0.516 million), Safeguarding and 
Commissioning Hubs (£0.125 million, due to vacancies), an underspend for 
the Advocacy contract (£0.085 million), uncommitted Carers and OT contract 
budgets (£0.223 million), and £0.108 million uncommitted government grant, 
as no repayment conditions are attached to the grants.

c. a number of smaller variances netting to a £0.028 million underspend.

Public Health

16.As in previous years, Public Health is reported as in balance, as services are funded 
by a ring-fenced grant, which if unspent is required to be carried forward in a specific 
reserve.

17.The in-year forecast for Public Health is a £0.538 million underspend (previously 
£0.260 million), of which £0.137 million relates to staff vacancies, £0.102 million to 
NHS Health checks, £0.162 million to tobacco control services, and £0.05 million to 
Domestic Abuse Services,  with £0.087 million relating to a number of small 
underspends across the service.  The increase in underspend mainly relates to NHS 
Health check and tobacco control activity, and Domestic Abuse Services 
commitments.  The underspend will be transferred to the Public Health reserve at 
year end.

Children and Families

18.The current forecast of the year end revenue position as at October 2017 for non-
DSG funded services is an over-spend position of £6.05 million (6.17% of budget). 
The underlying forecast over-spend is £9.09 million which reduces to £6.05 million 
when the vulnerable children’s reserve of £3.05 million is applied. The increase in 
the over-spend from the previous report is due to increased spend within the out of 
county placement budget offset by lower in-house fostering costs.

Page 53



8

19.The significant rise in children coming into care (October 2017 637 cases compared 
to April 2014 479) is continuing to cause considerable pressures on children’s 
services and in particular against the external agency placement and safeguarding 
budgets resulting in the over-spend. Significant contingencies were put in place to 
cover the cost of envisaged increases in children in care following the recent Ofsted 
Inspection. The expected increases in activity have not materialised to date, 
however individual placement costs for some young people have been exceptionally 
high. The contingencies set aside to mitigate the impact within the external 
placement budget have been used to meet the cost of these expensive placements. 

20.The costs relating to the implementation of the Improvement Plan are estimated to 
be £2.43 million following a review of what is required in both children’s and support 
services. Part of the total cost (£1.22m) will be funded from within the service area 
using one-off funding approved as part of the 2017/18 budget and unallocated 
contingencies. It is recommended that the balance of £1.21 million is funded from 
the Transformation Reserve.  £0.50 million has already been approved in the 
Cabinet Member decision in August, leaving a recommended further transfer of 
£0.71 million from the Transformation Reserve.

21.Within Children in Care the external placement budget is forecasting a £7.42 million 
over-spend (76.9% above budget). The forecast has increased by £0.5 million due 
to a number of placements being extended to the year end. There are currently 251 
external placements, compared with 231 at the same point last year. The IRIS 
(Intensive Recovery and Intervention Service) project is being developed to look at 
reducing future residential costs by supporting young people to step down to foster 
care or to return home. A contingency of £1.2 million is currently being held to cover 
new placements. 

22.Safeguarding staffing budgets have received £3.7 million of investment in total in 
two phases since 2016/17. Recruitment of experienced social workers continues to 
be challenging and agency staff have continued to cover staff vacancies or where 
caseloads remained high. The staffing budgets are forecasting to be £0.6 million 
over-spent. In addition the cost of child protection conferences is forecast to over-
spend by £0.33 million due to the use of agency staff to cover the number of child 
protection conferences required.

23.Section 17 and discretionary payments for children in care are over-spending by 
£0.63 million (84.4% of the budget) part of which is due to supporting families who 
have no recourse to public funds and interpreter fees. Some changes in practice 
were introduced last year replacing the use of ad hoc arrangements with a more 
coherent commissioning framework and once this embeds this should reduce some 
of the financial pressures in this area. 

24.Special guardianship order budgets are forecast to over-spend by £0.46 million due 
to the continued increased number of orders made but this is being partly offset by 

Page 54



9

lower commitments within adoption allowances and over achievement of income 
from inter agency placements totalling £0.33 million plus lower fostering costs of 
£0.29 million. Youth support services are forecasting an over-spend of £0.19 million 
due to the cost of agency staff in the youth support teams. The forecast for early 
year’s services is £0.16 million over-spend and relates to the implementation of new 
contracts for children’s centres, reflecting one off costs borne this financial year. 
Children with disabilities budgets are forecast to under-spend by £0.23 million due to 
lower costs in the residential unit and staff vacancies in the field work teams.  

Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) position

25.Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) funded services are forecast to be under-spent by 
£2.97 million which includes uncommitted balances brought forward from 2016/17 
totalling £3.88 million. Unallocated high needs funding of £0.66 million has been 
declared as uncommitted in year. Independent Special Schools are forecasting an 
overspend of £0.75 million due to increased activity and Special Educational Needs 
services are declaring a £0.18 million overspend due to staffing costs. Further 
pressure on top up budgets are resulting in a forecast over-spend of £0.5 million.  
The council’s High Needs Programme will, in part, be focussing upon independent 
special school placements and over time should reduce the financial pressure in this 
area.  SEN staffing costs will be addressed by year end through a restructure of 
education services.

Communities & Infrastructure 

26.The current year end forecast for Communities & Infrastructure is breakeven.

27.Highways Commissioning is reporting a £0.324 million overspend this month, largely 
due to an overspend forecast against the Street Lighting budget. This is made up of 
a significantly higher than forecast increases in the electricity price and the number 
of street lights as a result of development growth. The Highways contract is forecast 
to breakeven at this early stage in the year, although there are potential pressures 
on the revenue budget from costs associated with preparing the Highways contract 
tender for March 2019. This position includes a recommended revenue contribution 
to the Highways capital budget of £0.258 million.

28.Waste is currently reporting a balanced position. If there is an underspend at the 
year end it will be used to fund investment in the Household Recycling Centres – 
subject to the revenue contribution to capital being approved by Cabinet.

29.The Integrated Transport budget, Fire and Rescue Service budget and Libraries 
budget are reporting a forecast break even position.
 

30.Customer Services are reporting an under spend of £0.126 million due to part year 
vacancies that will be filled within 2017/18.

31.Strategic Infrastructure are reporting a £0.275 million underspend which relates to a 
planned revenue contribution to capital that will no longer take place. The capital 
schemes will now be funded from existing capital funds allowing the resulting 

Page 55



10

revenue underspend to be used to off-set pressure in the overall C&I revenue 
budget.

32.Regulatory Services are reporting an over spend of £0.077 million due to lower than 
forecast income in Registrar’s and Trading Standards. Finance is currently working 
with the service area to review income and explore opportunities to increase it with 
the aim of reducing the over spend.  

Business Support Services

33.The forecast outturn for Business Support Services is balanced position. 

34.This position includes a recommended revenue contribution to capital of £0.10 
million to the ICT capital programme in order to fund Wi-Fi in Children’s Services 
office accommodation.

35.Within Business Support Services, Strategy and Challenge are forecasting a 
balanced position. This position takes into account the continuing uncertainty around 
the volume of child protection legal cases, as yet unknown levels of traded service 
buyback from schools and the capacity required to address Ofsted 
recommendations.

Technical and Cross Cutting

36.The forecast outturn position for Technical and Corporate budgets is a £6.13 million 
underspend (12.3% of budget).  The main reasons are;

 When the 2017/18 Budget was agreed in February 2017 a number of 
government funding streams had not been finalised. These funding streams 
have now been confirmed and have resulted in slightly more central funding 
than originally estimated.  In total, £1.196 million more will be received from 
s31 grants as a result of changes that central government have made to 
business rates, known as Business Rates Autumn Statement 
Reimbursement for 2017/18, and consisting of eight separate s31 grants.  
These changes to funding are managed within the Technical and Corporate 
budgets for the Council.

 Positive interest rate credits on balances increased income by a further £0.5 
million to £2.0 million, reflecting better diversification of investments and 
longer term deposits;

 The 2017/18 budget included an MtC2 savings contingency; this was 
approved by Council to reflect the high risk nature of some of the savings 
programmes in demand led areas in 2017/18. Given the difficulties in 
achieving savings across some services as outlined in this report £1.6 
million has been released to support the overall budget. 

 A review of insurance premiums and potential in year liabilities has resulted 
in a one-off underspend of £0.75 million now being reported on the 
corporate insurance budget.  This will kept under review as the year 
continues given that the position could change linked to insurance risk.

 A number of small underspends totalling £0.44 million.

37.One of the key areas within the Corporate and Technical budget is the council’s 
secondary rate pension contribution to the Gloucestershire LGPS.  The county 

Page 56



11

council pays employer contribution payments to the LGPS Fund as recommended 
by actuary valuations. This contribution is split into two elements. The primary rate 
reflects the current employer’s rate, shown as a percentage within budgets in 
service areas. The secondary rate contribution is held corporately as a budget within 
the Technical & Corporate budget area and reflects the historical past service 
council pension liability to the council.  The recent triennial actuarial review identified 
a one off £4.2 million reduction in the secondary sum for 2017/18, resulting in  a 
one-off surplus in the centrally held secondary rate pension budget.  Finance have 
undertaken research with the actuary to explore the benefits to the council of  
making an additional payment to the Pension Fund in the current year to help 
address its past year pension deficit liability.

38.This detailled analysis highlighted that there are risks attached to making an 
additional payment, e.g. if markets perform badly after the payment has been made 
the expected benefit to the council is reduced.  Given these risks it was concluded 
that an additional payment would not be made.  This now leaves a £4.2 million one 
off underspend, which is recommended be transferred to the Transformation 
Reserve along with £0.8 million of other Corporate and Technical underspends 
outlined above to finance the cost of continuing council transformation.

39.The analysis with the actuary has also explored the cash flow of the council making 
the required secondary sum payments to the LGPS over the 3 year triennial period. 
This has identified a net benefit to the council of making a pre-payment for future 
year liability i.e. pay some of the liability up front which impacts on cash flow but 
does not represent an additional payment. Currently monthly contributions are paid 
to the pension fund, however, if a prepayment of £10 million is made savings of 
£0.375 million could be realised over the final two years of the three year actuarial 
cycle.

40.The prepayment would be funded from available cash now (ie cash that would 
otherwise have formed part of the Councils treasury management investment 
balances), and in accounting terms would not be charged against the budget until 
the year the liability is incurred, so there is no need to identify available budget when 
the payment is made. This would therefore have no impact on the budgeted position 
for 2018-19 or 2019/20. The expected return on this prepayment is £0.185 million 
higher than that currently achieved by the Council in short term investments.

41. In summary a prepayment is beneficial to the Council and it is therefore 
recommended that a £10 million prepayment is made.

B. Delivery of Meeting the Challenge 2 Savings

42.Projects and programmes in place to deliver a savings target of £26.014 million of 
savings during 2017/18.  

43.At the end of September, the Council is forecasting delivery of £23.261million 
against this target, which represents 89.4% achievement.  

44.£2.753 million of savings are forecast to be at risk of not being achieved in 17/18. 
This shortfall has been built into 2017/18 forecasts shown earlier in report and one-
off savings have been identified to mitigate the impact in the current year. The 

Page 57



12

majority of the 2017/18 savings shortfalls are on track to be achieved in 2018/19.

45.Details of the Programme savings targets is provided in the table below 

Programme/Project

17/18 
Savings 
Target 
£000's

On track 
to be 

delivered 
£000's

On track 
but with 

some risk 
£000's

At Risk 
£000's

Notes

Adults Single Programme 11,159 8,703 2,245 211 Shortfall incorporated in forecast and 
covered by one-off monies in 2017/18.

Vulnerable Children programme 2,699 2,162 0 537
Shortfall in 2017/18 incorporated in 
forecast - on track to be deliverd in 
2018/19.

Customer programme - Access 441 191 0 250
Shortfall covered by Tech & Corp budget 
in 2017/18.

Customer programme - Universal 400 271 0 129
Shortfall covered by Tech & Corp budget 
in 2017/18.

Customer programme - Registration 30 30 0
Customer programme - Property 3,000 3,000 0 0
Transport programme 996 996 0 0 Includes £325 delivered early in 16/17

Community Safety programme 188 154 0 34
Shortfall incorporated into 2017/18  
forecast.

Highways 250 200 0 50
Shortfall incorporated into 2017/18  
forecast.

Infrastructure & Economic Growth 300 0 0 300
Deliverable in 18/19. Ofset by Bus 
Services Operator Grant in 17/18

Supporting People 1,415 673 0 742
Shortfall incorporated into 2017/18 
forecast - expected to be achieved in 
2018/19.

Education 916 916 0 0
Refocus QA function 81 81 0 0
Reshaping Commissioning 297 297 0 0
LED streetlights/Renewable energy 300 300 0 0
Public Health 2,630 2,130 0 500 2017/18 shortfall covered by PH Reserve
Strategic Finance 180 180 0 0
BSC 109 109 0 0
HR 216 216 0 0

ICT 271 0 271 0
Shortfall incorporated into 2017/18 
forecast.

Legal 75 75 0
Strategy & Challenge 61 61 0
TOTALS 26,014 20,715 2,546 2,753

79.6% 9.8% 10.6%

C. Capital Expenditure

Current Spend 2017/18

The revised capital budget for 2017/18 is £120.724 million. This is an increase of 
£0.880 million, reflecting new approvals for additional grant and contributions as 
agreed at Cabinet in July 2017 and September 2017.

Actual spend against the capital programme as at September 2017 is £45.725 
million. The nature of capital investment means that spend tends to be lower during 

Page 58



13

the first phase of a scheme with the majority of spend occurring once the 
construction phase begins.  This means for new schemes the majority of spend will 
occur towards the end of the financial year. 

Capital Forecast Outturn Position 2017/18

46.The forecast outturn position for 2017/18 is £110.909 million, giving an in year 
slippage of £9.815 million. 

47.Details of the budgets, forecast year end position analysed by service area and key 
factors considered in producing this forecast position are provided in the table below 
and the narrative that follows.  Any variations shown below only relate to the 
2017/18 spend profiles and will not translate into over or underspends against the 
overall scheme budgets unless highlighted.

  

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE 2017/18

Service Area

Reprofiled 
Budget 
2017/18

Current 
Year 

Spend 
2017/18

% Current 
Year 

Spend 
against 

Reprofiled 
Budget

Forecast 
Outturn 
2017/18

Forecast 
Year-end 
Variance

£000 £000 % £000 £000
Capital Receipts Works 
Before Sale 0 0 0 0

Adults 9,847 3,645 37 9,824 -23

Children & Families 27,839 12,559 45 28,557 718

Communities & Infrastructure: 0

Highways 42,807 19,287 45 42,903 96

Infrastructure 10,655 540 5 4,480 -6,175

Business Support 24,027 8,582 36 20,915 -3,112

Libraries 1,451 76 5 519 -932

Archives 2,713 633 23 2,327 -386

Safety 1,384 403 29 1,384 0

Total 120,724 45,725 38 110,909 -9,815

Adults Capital Programme 

48.Adults schemes are forecast to spend £9.824 million in 2017/18 against the budget 
of £9.847 million, giving forecast minor slippage of £0.023 million. 

Children & Families Capital Programme 

Page 59



14

49.Children & Families schemes are forecast to spend £28.557 million in 2017/18 
against the budget of £27.839 million, giving a forecast overspend of £0.718 million. 
£0.500 million of this forecast overspend will be met from future developer 
contributions for Bourton-on-the-Water Primary. The balance of £0.218 million is the 
result of some schemes progressing faster than expected, offset by slippage on 
other schemes, although this has no effect on the overall cost of these schemes.

Highways Capital Programme

50.Highways schemes are forecast to spend £42.903 million in 2017/18, against the 
current budget of £42.807 million, giving a forecast overspend of £0.096 million.    
This overspend is a result of works planned against Highways Locals Contributions 
to capital schemes that have not yet been transferred form the revenue budget to 
capital. Funding is therefore available to cover the overspend. 

Infrastructure Capital Programme 

51. Infrastructure schemes are forecast to spend £4.480 million in 2017/18, against a 
budget of £10.655 million giving a forecast slippage of £6.175 million. £1.875 million 
of this slippage relates to delays on Flood Alleviation schemes where the timescales 
are dependant on progress to be made by our partners including the Environment 
Agency. It is anticipated that these schemes will complete in 2018/19. The 
remaining £4.300 million relates to the Fastershire Broadband scheme where we 
are still focusing on using the Broadband Delivery UK grant before the GCC capital 
which we are effectively safeguarding to support & help maintain delivery longer 
term.

Business Support Capital Programme 

52.Business Support schemes are forecast to spend £20.915 million in 2017/18, 
against a budget of £24.027 million, resulting in a forecast slippage of £3.112 
million. £1.787 relates to an ICT scheme where the reduced forecast reflects the 
activities achievable this financial year, the remaining funding still required to 
complete works in future years. The remaining £1.325 million slippage relates to 
AMPS schemes. £0.949 million relates to a number of schemes where progress has 
been delayed for a variety of reasons, including the complexities of moving around 
service delivery teams whilst maintaining front line services. There is also a £0.376 
million increase in the budget figure relating to the transfer of a C&F scheme to the 
AMPS capital programme.  This transfer of budget reflects the management of the 
scheme only and has no impact on the scheme itself, which is now forecast to be 
delivered next year. 

Libraries Capital Programme 

53.Libraries schemes are forecast to spend £0.519 million in 2017/18, against a budget 
of £1.451 million, giving a forecast slippage of £0.932 million.  This is due to 
significant delays in the Customer Programme caused by the need to defer 
decisions pending the outcome of the Wide Area Network review, plus issues in the 
tender of the RFID project.

Archives Capital Programme 

Page 60



15

54.Archives schemes are forecast to spend £2.327 million in 2017/18, against a budget 
of £2.713million, giving a forecast slippage of £0.386 million due to delays related to 
procuring sub-contractors.   These issues have now been resolved and the scheme 
is due to complete early next financial year. Total costs will remain within the overall 
approved budget.

Safety Capital Programme 

55.Safety schemes are forecast to spend £1.384 million in 2017/18, in line with the 
proposed budget for the year.

Changes to the Capital Programme in 2017/18 and future years

Adults

56. It is recommended that Cabinet notes the transfer £0.360 million from the ‘Sandford 
Park House Dilapidation Costs’ scheme in the Adults Capital Programme to the 
AMPS Capital Programme to reflect the current management and reporting of these 
works.

Children & Families

57.There is a currently a £0.024 million scheme in the approved capital programme, 
funded by a s106 developer contribution, for Bourton-on-the-Water Primary 
Academy to provide a development plan to show how the school’s accommodation 
can be improved.  As a result of this development plan, a project to provide 
improvements to the teaching accommodation and ancillary provision has been 
agreed. The Council is in receipt of an additional £0.754 million of s106 developer 
contributions arising from local housing developments (land to north of Roman Way 
and land at Station Road/Roman Road) to be used towards capital works at 
Bourton-on-the-Water Primary Academy. As an Academy the school is responsible 
for any capital improvements on the site rather than the Local Authority, although 
the developer contributions are paid to the Council.  

58. It is recommended that Cabinet approves a new capital scheme at Bourton-on-the-
Water Primary, funded by £0.754 million developer s106 contributions.

59. It is recommended that Cabinet notes the transfer of £0.375 million from the Locality 
Solutions’ scheme in Children & Families Capital Programme to the AMPS Capital 
Programme to reflect the current management and reporting of these works.

Highways

60. It is recommended that Cabinet approves an increase of £3.014 million in the 
Highways Capital budget. This increase will be funded by a £2.700 million grant 
from the Department of Transport 2017-18 National Productivity Investment Fund for 
the Cross Keys Roundabout Capacity Improvements and Signalisation project. Also 
£0.258 million of revenue contributions from Highways budgets and £0.056 million 
from Developer and Parish contributions.

Page 61



16

61. It is recommended that Cabinet approves a transfer of £2.521 million of existing C&I 
unallocated capital funding - made up of £1.727 million of Highways, £0.478 million 
of Structural Maintenance and £0.316 million of Integrated Transport - to fund the 
additional works on phase one of Cinderford Northern Quarter Spine Road following 
on from the July 2015 Cabinet decision to proceed with the project and the outcome 
of the adjudicator’s decision outlined in September’s budget monitoring report.

Infrastructure Capital Programme 

62. It is recommended that Cabinet approves an increase of £0.198 million in the 
Infrastructure Capital budget for the Saturn Multi Modal Transport Model. This 
increase will be funded the Transformation Reserve. 

ICT

63. It is recommended that Cabinet approves an increase of £0.100 million in the ICT 
Capital budget in order to provide Wi-Fi in Children’s Services office 
accommodation. This will be funded by a revenue contribution from Support 
Services underspends.

Overall

64.As a result of the above changes, the overall capital programme will increase by 
£4.066 million.

Gloucestershire 100% Business Rate Retention Pilot – 

65.The Department for Communities and Local Government has recently published an 
invitation to Local Authorities in England to pilot 100% Business Rates Retention in 
2018/19 and to pioneer new pooling and tier-split models.”

66.Applications are invited from authorities in England with the Government 
encouraging applications from groups of authorities (either on existing, or revised, 
pool boundaries) which comprise, in particular, county council(s) and all relevant 
district councils; groups of unitary authorities; or groups of county councils, all their 
districts and unitaries. The Government is particularly interested in piloting two-tier 
areas and rural areas (given the majority of 2017 pilots are in urban areas). To be 
accepted as a pilot for 2018/19, agreement must be secured locally from all relevant 
authorities.

67.A proposal from Gloucestershire to become a pilot for 2018/19 would fit the criteria 
the Government are looking for in terms of a rural two-tier system of local 
government. The proposal would also fit well with the aims and objectives of the 
Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint Committee, which has received funding 
from the current business rates pool and the need for sustainable funding for all 
those participating. 

68.There are some significant risks associated with becoming a pilot at this time due to 
the existing high levels of appeals within the business rates system dating back to 

Page 62



17

2010. There is also the potential for appeals on the new 2017 list to be higher than 
the Council (and indeed government) have anticipated.  Under the pilot scheme, the 
risk up to the safety net threshold will fall with the Gloucestershire authorities.  
However the safety net level position has improved, as a pool would now only fund 
the first 3% of losses instead of the existing pooled loss of 7.5%.  This means that 
for Gloucestershire, the first £3.5 million of losses would fall upon the pool. Scenario 
modelling undertaken with an external consultant.  This has identified that the 
biggest risk is a successful set of claims from NHS Trusts who are currently seeking 
charitable status, which would reduce their business rates.  

69.The modelling has estimated a reasonable worse case scenario, which estimates a 
surplus of £2.4 million over and above the current pool with a best case estimate 
being over £10 million, both exclude the impact of successful claims from NHS 
Trusts.  

70.On the 25th October DCLG announced that all pilots would now include a no 
detriment clause, which in effect means that local authorities are no worse off in 
becoming a pilot, removing the significant risks outlined earlier.  

71.Following a review of the analysis Leadership Gloucestershire supported a bid, 
which was submitted on 27th October, which is attached annex 1.

72.The bidding process is competitive and DCLG have advised that they will notify 
successful bid areas by mid November to facilitate detailed discussions around the 
bid to inform the December financial settlement. In the event the bid is unsuccessful 
the council would pursue the pooling option it has participated in over the last few 
years. 

73. It is recommended that Cabinet approve the pilot in the event the bid is successful.

Page 63



This page is intentionally left blank



Annex 1

PROPOSAL TO BE A PILOT FOR 100% BUSINESS RATE RETENTION

Our bid is set out in the attached letter signed by the Leaders of all 7 Gloucestershire 
Councils (6 District Councils and the County Council)

Section 4 of The Invitation To Bid includes details of the business case that should 
be set out. Whilst the Leaders’ letter contains much of the business case, this is 
summarised below for ease of reference, using the number referencing in Section 4.

Membership Details/Housekeeping

i. All 7 Gloucestershire Councils (Cheltenham BC, Cotswold DC, Forest of 
Dean DC, Gloucester City Council, Stroud DC, Tewkesbury BC and 
Gloucestershire County Council). The GFirst Local Enterprise Partnership 
area is coterminous with this administrative area. The Gloucestershire 
Economic Growth Joint Committee, whose membership comprises all 
these organisations, covers the same economic geography. It forms a well 
understood and recognised functional economic area in terms of business, 
employment and housing markets and public services.

ii. As evidenced by the Leaders’ letter, all authorities fully support the 
application and the proposed pooling arrangements. All Section 151 
officers have been involved in the construction of the business case and 
are in agreement with the bid.

iii. Should we not be successful with our pilot bid, we wish to see our current 
pooling arrangements continue. This would involve the 6 authorities 
currently in the Gloucestershire pool. Tewkesbury BC is not part of the 
pool. DCLG were made fully aware of the circumstances resulting in this 
withdrawal in April 2015. 

iv. The announcement about ‘no detriment’ removes this issue. 
v. Stroud District Council.
vi. The Fire and Rescue service is part of Gloucestershire County Council 

and therefore not a separate precepting authority.

Page 65



Governance Arrangements. 

vii. Gloucestershire Councils have operated business rate pooling 
arrangements since April 2013. These have been managed successfully 
by Stroud District Council since inception, with the involvement of all 
Section 151 officers. Appropriate governance arrangements are in place. 
Our pooling arrangements were some of the first for ‘shire’ areas and have 
remained sound and robust.  Pooling arrangements were amended with 
the withdrawal of Tewkesbury BC in April 2015. The governance 
agreement model currently in place, which is already acceptable to DCLG, 
will be used for the pilot. This sets out how risks are managed and how 
residual benefits/liabilities are to be dealt with should the pool cease. 
Section 151 Officers meet regularly as a Pool Management Team and 
model and monitor the Pool’s performance. A wider Technical Working 
Group drawn from all 7 Councils examines intelligence drawn from 
planning, finance and revenue teams. It uses forecasting models to assess 
business rate projections and Collection Fund status. Pool performance is 
monitored closely as are risks to the Pool.

viii. The 7 Gloucestershire Councils are committed to operate the pool for the 
long term, provided it is in the collective financial interests to do so. There 
is no question of only wishing to operate a pool for the 2018/19 pilot.

ix. As set out in the Leaders’ letter, the commitment is to share additional 
growth in the following way;

 20% to an already established and effective Strategic Economic 
Development Fund (set up under existing pool arrangements and 
managed by the Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint 
Committee comprising all 7 Gloucestershire Councils and the GFirst 
Local Enterprise Partnership)

 30% to the 6 District Councils for financial resilience (stability and 
sustainability) and growth initiatives specific to their individual areas

 50% to the County Council for financial resilience (stability and 
sustainability) and growth initiatives 

Additional Supporting Evidence

x. Section 151 Officers have modelled the benefits based on a number of 
assumptions about risk, business rate growth and the level of appeals, 
losses and relief changes. After allowing for all authorities to receive what 
they would have received under Revenue Support Grant and Rural 
Services Grant and a prudent approach to financial risks, it is estimated 
that a pilot may generate an additional sum of £10m in 2018/19. The 
detailed financial modelling can be provided as necessary. 

Page 66



The Section 151 Officers have considerable experience of carrying out 
such modelling based on the operation of pool arrangements since April 
2013. 

xi. The tier split is set out in ix. 
xii. Gloucestershire’s economy is broadly based and resilient and this is 

reflected in the business rate base. Experian’s Resilience Index placed 
Gloucestershire as the 9th most resilient LEP area (2012). Cheltenham and 
Gloucester have strong retail and service sectors which provide both 
resilience and good prospects of sustained growth. Gloucestershire has 
good representation in other sectors across its market towns and rural 
areas and there is significant business rate growth associated with M5 
related developments. Growth Deal projects and infrastructure investment 
overseen by the Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint Committee offer 
good prospects of business growth. 
As the Strategic Economic Plan for Gloucestershire states; 
“we are in the top three LEPs for employment within knowledge intensive 
manufacturing and services; the highest percentage in all LEP regions of 
employees in high and medium technology manufacturing; and an 
abundance of SME’s in cyber security and creative industries, all of which 
have high growth potential and for some businesses there is capacity for 
significant expansion in export”. 
GCHQ in Cheltenham, Gloucestershire Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust 
(Gloucester and Cheltenham hospitals) and Virgin Media in Tewkesbury 
are the most significant single hereditaments. There are regular reviews of 
each local authority’s ‘Top 20’ hereditaments and analysis indicates a 
broad mix of property categories that help mitigates risk to business rate 
income.  
The financial modelling undertaken by Gloucestershire Section 151 
officers indicates strong prospects for business rate growth in 2018/19. 
Their assessment is a significant financial benefit from operating a 100% 
Business Rate Retention Pilot. 

Page 67



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	5 Tender and Award of Recyclate Services under the Dynamic Purchasing System (DPS) for Household Recycling
	6 Stonehouse A419 Improvement Scheme - Contract Procurement and Ancillary Orders
	7 Domiciliary Care - Urban Dynamic Purchasing System (DPS)
	8 Financial Monitoring Report 2017/18
	Item 8 - Annex 1


